
 

 

 

Agenda 

 

 
 
Date: 
 

 
Friday, 19 June 2020 

 
Time: 
 

 
11.00 am 

 
Venue: 
 

 
Virtual 

 
   

  
The Briefing Meeting for Members will be held virtually at 10.30am.  
 

 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 18) (11.00am) 
 

 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2020. 
 

4. Public Question Time  
 

 Anyone who works or lives in the Thames Valley can ask a question 
at meetings of the Police and Crime Panel, at which a 20 minute 
session will be designated for hearing from the public. 
 
If you’d like to participate, please read the Public Question Time 
Scheme and submit your questions by email to 
contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk at least three working days in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

5. Police and Crime Commissioner's Response to COVID-19 (Pages 
19 - 40) (11.05am) 

 

 To consider a report of the PCC on his response to Covid 19.  
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk


 

 

6. Police and Crime Commissioner's Annual Report - 2019-20 
(Pages 41 - 58) (11.40am) 

 

 To consider the PCC’s Annual Report for 2019-20. 
 

7. Police and Crime Panel's Annual Report 2019-20 (Pages 59 - 72) 
(12.10pm) 

 

 To consider the Police and Crime Panel’s Annual Report for 2019-20. 
 

8. Taxi-Licensing Coordinator Single Point of Contact Post 
(12.25pm)  

 

 To assess the effectiveness of the ‘Taxi-Licensing Coordinator Single 
Point of Contact’ post (currently hosted by TVP and temporarily 
funded by the PCC) to inform future funding decisions by TV local 
authorities concerning that post. 
 

9. Chairman and PCC Updates and Topical Issues (Pages 73 - 76) 
(12.40pm) 

 

 The PCC and Chairman of the Panel To provide updates. 
 
The PCC has been asked a question by a Member of the Panel on 
any reviews which the commissioner has undertaken to ensure that 
the issues raised by the Black Lives Matter movement are being 
addressed by TVP. 
 
Has the PCC sought information on: 

 The current make-up of Thames Valley Police Force with 
regard to protected characteristics compared to the community 
at large 

 What training is given to officers in order to overcome any 
inherent prejudice 

 Any statistics that are available regarding the number of 
people issued with penalties for breaches of lockdown and 
whether these have been disproportionately issued to people 
from the BAME communities. 

 
To note and ask questions on the topical issues report. 
 

Date of next meeting: 4 September 2020 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Kieron Mallon (Oxfordshire County Council) (Chairman), Councillor 
Trevor Egleton (Buckinghamshire Council (former South Bucks District Council) 
(Vice-Chairman)), Councillor Adele Barnett-Ward (Reading Borough Council), 



 

 

Councillor Bill Bendyshe-Brown (Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor Robin 
Bradburn (Milton Keynes Council), Councillor David Cannon (Royal Borough of 
Windsor and Maidenhead), Councillor David Carroll (Buckinghamshire Council 
(former Wycombe District Council)), Councillor Neil Fawcett (Vale of White Horse 
District Council), Councillor John Harrison (Bracknell Forest Council), Liz Jones 
(Independent Member), Councillor Norman MaCrae (West Oxfordshire District 
Council), Councillor Andrew McHugh (Cherwell District Council), Phillip Morrice 
(Independent Member), Councillor Mohammed Nazir (Slough Borough Council), 
Councillor Barrie Patman (Wokingham Borough Council), Councillor David 
Rouane (South Oxfordshire District Council), Councillor Claire Rowles (West 
Berkshire Council),Councillor Louise Upton (Oxford City Council), Councillor 
Jonathan Waters (Buckinghamshire Council (former (Chiltern District Council)) 
and Councillor Mark Winn (Buckinghamshire Council (former Aylesbury Vale 
District Council)). 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes 
 

Minutes of the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel held on Friday, 14 
February 2020 in Paralympic Meeting Room, Aylesbury Vale District Council 
Offices, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury, Bucks HP19 8FF, commencing at 11.00 
am and concluding at 12.55 pm 

 
Members Present 
 
Councillor Kieron Mallon (Oxfordshire County Council) (Chairman), Councillor Trevor 
Egleton (South Bucks District Council) (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Bill Bendyshe-
Brown (Buckinghamshire County Council), Councillor Robin Bradburn (Milton Keynes 
Council), Councillor David Carroll (Wycombe District Council), Councillor Neil 
Fawcett (Vale of White Horse District Council), Councillor Norman MaCrae (West 
Oxfordshire District Council), Councillor John Harrison (Bracknell Forest Council), 
Councillor Andrew McHugh (Cherwell District Council), Phillip Morrice (Independent 
Member), Councillor Mohammed Nazir (Slough Borough Council), Councillor Barrie 
Patman (Wokingham Borough Council), Councillor David Rouane (South Oxfordshire 
District Council), Councillor John Tanner (Substitute - Oxford City Council), and 
Councillor Jonathan Waters (Chiltern District Council). 
 
Officer Present 
Khalid Ahmed (Scrutiny Officer). 
 
Others Present 
Matthew Barber (Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner), John Campbell (Chief 
Constable, Thames Valley Police), Paul Hammond (Chief Executive Officer of PCC), 
Anthony Stansfeld (Police and Crime Commissioner), Ian Thompson (Chief Finance 
Officer of PCC) and Vicki Waskett (Head of Governance and Compliance, Office of 
PCC).  
 

1/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Nigel Chapman (Oxford City 
Council) (Councillor John Tanner substituting), Councillor Steve Good (West 
Oxfordshire District Council) (Councillor Norman MaCrae appointed as replacement 
representative) and Councillor Howard Woollaston (West Berkshire Council).  
 

2/20 MINUTES  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 22 November 2019 were agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman). 
 
[In relation to Minute No. 30 – Report of the Complaints Sub-Committee – it was 
agreed that Councillor Trevor Egleton, Councillor Andrew McHugh and Mr Phillip 
Morrice be appointed to the vacancies on the Complaints Sub-Committee.]     
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

3/20 REPORT OF THE BUDGET TASK AND FINISH GROUP  
 
As in previous years, the Thames Valley Police & Crime Panel formed a Budget Task 
& Finish Group to assist in discharging its statutory duty to scrutinise the Police & 
Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Thames Valley’s proposed Council Tax precept for 
2020/21. 
 
Councillor Barrie Patman, the Chairman of the Budget Task and Finish Group 
presented the report. He thanked Ian Thompson and Linda Waters for attending the 
Group and updating Members on the PCC’s draft budget proposals. 
 
The Panel was informed that in normal circumstances the PCC would notify the 
Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel of his proposed council tax precept by 1st 
February 2020. However, this had not been possible this year given that the Police 
Grant Settlement for 2020/21 was not announced until 22 January 2020 making a 
formal proposal to the Panel before 1st February not possible. 
 
This lateness of the preparation of the draft budget and proposed council tax precept 
had meant that the Budget Task and Finish Group had only had one meeting to 
consider and scrutinise the proposals.  
 
The Chairman particularly referred to the following points:-  
 

 The proposed increase to the police element of the Council Tax was by £10 
per annum for 2020/21 (for a Band D property). 

 Overall the settlement announcement was good news with an additional grant 
and increased flexibility in council tax precept enabling the addressing of some 
service and performance issues by increasing resources, both police officers 
and police staff, alongside the investment in technology to improve 
productivity. 

 Reference was made to the expected increase in demand for services over the 
next four years, particularly in relation to increases in terror related incidents, 
County Lines, cybercrime, increased reporting of complex crimes such as 
general sexual exploitation and Domestic Violence (DV). 

 The increase in police officer numbers nationally of 6,000 by the end of March 
2021 and a further 14,000 by March 2023 would result in around an additional 
183 officers in the Thames Valley in the coming year. It was noted that the 
impact of this would not be felt immediately. 

 The funding settlement allows for the full funding of these officers in the 
financial year and provides an uplift to allow for additional infrastructure and 
support costs for the full uplift of officers over the next three years. Estimated 
infrastructure funding needs for the future years from the current year’s 
settlement needed to be set aside. 

 There was a focus on increasing productivity by investing in technology and 
ensuring the appropriate process and cultural change flows from that 
investment to improve effectiveness. 

 Reference was made to the assumption being made that for 2021/22 and 
beyond, that there would be full funding for additional officers under the 
national uplift programme, but there would only be a 1% increase in core 
grants and a return to the 2% council tax precept rise.  

Page 2



 

 For the next 4 years in compiling the MTFP the following assumptions were   
made: 

 General inflation will be applied at 2.0% in each of the next 4 years; 
specific inflation rates are based on sector led rates, e.g. Premises at 
5.7%, 

 Fuel at 7.0% and Utilities at 4% per annum; 
 specific inflation has been applied to the facilities contracts to allow for 

wage uplifts in relation to the National Minimum Wage (NMW) and 
recruitment issues (9.1%), 

 pay inflation has been included at 2.5% per annum for both Police 
Officers and Staff, 

 future increases in Council Tax precept at 2.0% per annum; 
 Council tax billing base to increase by 1.66% in 2020/21; with following 

increases at 1.5% per annum; 
 General police grants to rise by 7.5% in 2020/21; with following 

increases at 1.0% per annum over the period. 
 The use of reserves to support the MTFP & MTCP, but these will be 

significantly committed by the end of the four-year period. 
 The future investment in technology, whether direct capital purchase or 

revenue service contracts will need to be funded by revenue given the 
diminishing level of reserves and the very low level of annual capital 
grant. This final assumption continues to reflect the increasing demand 
for investment in technology and the expectation that this will continue 
with the rollout of national programmes to address the Policing Vision 
2025, against declining reserves and minimal capital grant. The 
provision within the MTFP for the direct funding of capital has increased 
to provide an annual fund of £11m by 2021/22. This is seen as a 
sensible approach to future financial sustainability. 

 
Details of the necessary items needed to maintain the current levels of service within 
Thames Valley were reported and were contained in paragraph 25 of the report.  
 
Items of growth to improve performance and meet demands were reported and were 
detailed in paragraph 26. Particular reference was made to the reduction in capital 
receipts which would mean the growth areas would have to be funded from revenue 
accounts and reserves. 
 
There were two areas of significant investment which would increase officer numbers: 
- Operation Uplift which gave TVP the allocated 183 additional officers from the first 
allocation of 6,000 officers nationally. The uplift in officers had come with additional 
funding in the current years settlement and would cover the full additional costs of 
salaries and associated on-costs. 
 
The other area was Strategic Investment Funding (£4.2m) - Council tax flexibility 
which has enabled the identification of several investment opportunities as detailed in 
paragraph 27 of the report.  
 
In relation to the Force Productivity Strategy, reference was made to cash savings of 
£106m having been taken out of the base revenue budget over the last nine years 

Page 3



 

and that it was now becoming difficult to identify further efficiency savings. Those new 
and changed initiatives were outlined which would bring about further efficiencies.  
 
In relation to reserves and balances, based on assumptions, general revenue 
balances would stay slightly above the approved 3% target level throughout the next 
4 years. Earmarked reserves were forecast to reduce from £24.5m on 1 April 2019 to 
just £3.5m by 31 March 2024, including £1.4m in the Conditional Funding and 
SEROCU reserves which are not available to support general operational policing. 
 
The Optimism Bias reserve which was created in 2018/19 with the transfer of £12m 
from the Improvement and Performance reserve would be fully utilised by the end of 
2021/22. This reserve had been used to fund unexpected cost pressures on the 
Contact Management Platform and the joint ERP solution with Surrey and Sussex 
(Equip). 
 
Particular reference was made to the Improvement and Performance reserve which 
was now only £1.7m. This would mean that future growth proposals would have to be 
funded from either council tax or by offsetting savings elsewhere in the budget.  
 
The Capital Programme consisted of schemes costing £38.401m in 2020/21, which 
includes £1.062m of projects previously identified in the 2019/20 capital plan but 
which are now re-phased to allow for planning and tendering procedures, and a total 
of £84.416m over the 4-year period. 
 
The level of investment resulted in a funding surplus over the 4-year period of 
£3.948m. However, this included plans to borrow £20.32m for Reading Police 
Station, the SEROCU western hub and Maidenhead Court in 2019/20 and 2020/21. 
 
A recommendation had been put forward which was debated during the next item as 
follows:-  
 
That the Panel approve the Police and Crime Commissioner’s precept for 
2020/21 as set out in the OPCC report ‘Revenue Estimates 2020/21 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24’ subject to satisfactory responses to 
the questions raised and any other supplementary questions asked at the 
Panel meeting. 
 

4/20 SCRUTINY OF THE PROPOSED PRECEPT - QUESTIONS TO THE POLICE 
AND CRIME COMMISSIONER  
 
The PCC responded to the following written questions:- 
 
1. Will this budget mean that you are in a better position to deliver the key 
objectives in your Police and Crime Plan, particularly in relation to the reduction of 
crime and higher detection and conviction rates?  
 
[Yes, the budget enables the Chief Constable to recruit up to full current 
establishment. In addition, we have already started to recruit the additional 183 police 
officers and, provided everything goes to plan, we should have these in place by late 
summer. 

Page 4



 

 
Although it will take a while before these extra officers are ready for operational 
deployment I am confident that, together with the additional investment included in 
the budget, I will be able to deliver my Police and Crime Plan objectives and also 
leave a good legacy for my successor.] 
 
2. What rationale will be used to decide where the extra 183 officers will be 
deployed across the Thames Valley? 
 
[The PCC reported that the initial 183 officers are being deployed to LPA Incident and 
Crime Response (ICR) teams as this is the area where changing levels of demand 
are felt to be impacting most severely and also an area that has previously seen a 
reduction of officers because of funding challenges. As officers begin their service in 
ICR, there are clearly also practical reasons which would prevent us from increasing 
the establishment of other teams – not least, it would leave a very inexperienced 
group of officers in the ICR teams and make it difficult for us to maintain minimum 
resource levels as a result of the abstractions that student officers will have as part of 
the new entry routes. 
 
The distribution of those resources across LPAs has been determined through a 
refresh of our resource modelling.  As the remit of ICR teams is primarily reactive, 
this modelling was based on: 
 

 The volume and type of crimes and incidents that take place in each LPA; 

 The time spent dealing with those types of crimes and incidents; 

 The travel time involved in attending those crimes and incidents, taking into 
account the geographical and demand profile of each LPA 

 The time required to investigate these crimes; 

 Travelling time to custody in each LPA; 

 Travelling time to conduct enquiries in each LPA. 
 
To ensure that we didn’t unfairly prejudice any LPA, we also reviewed the level of 
neighbourhood resourcing based on such factors as population, indices of 
deprivation, geography and volumes of ASB, and made adjustments to the allocation 
where an LPA was felt to be under-resourced. It is also important to note that the 
impact will be felt not only by the direct uplift that each LPA is receiving but also from 
the reduced need to abstract officers to cover elsewhere in the force. Over time the 
demand in some areas has increased more than in others, the rapidly expanding 
Milton Keynes being an example, and as a result it is increasingly common for 
officers to have to move from their LPA to cover otherwise unstainable pressure. So, 
by applying a robust assessment of relative demand, and matching resources in the 
same relative proportions, we anticipate a significant reduction in LPA to LPA 
abstraction - communities will always be best served by local officers working locally. 
 
The Chief Constable commented that professional nous and experience, together 
with logic formed part of the reasoning behind where deployments would be made.] 
 
3. Historically, the recruitment and retention of Police Officers in the Thames 
Valley has been a challenge. What new initiatives are being considered to ensure 
TVP are competitive in the market? 

Page 5



 

 
[In order to improve our Employer Brand and attract candidates in a very competitive 
market, both locally and now nationally as a result of “Uplift” we have introduced the 
following initiatives: 
 

 Invested in an in-house Employer Marketing Lead, which has been more cost 
effective than outsourcing to expensive advertising agencies. 

 Developed our own TVP Careers Microsite to promote all careers 
opportunities within TVP, to include a Talent Bank for potential candidates to 
submit Expressions of Interest. 

 Increased focus on social media to enable a more cost effective targeted 
approach to advertising. 

 Refresh of our branding/marketing materials to improve our image and be 
more reflective of our communities. 

 Invested in a Positive Action Engagement Team, who are tasked with directly 
engaging with members of the communities who are from BAME backgrounds. 

 Providing support to BAME to provide help and coaching through the 
recruitment process. 

 Aspiring to achieve a 25% BAME recruitment target of all intakes. 

 Streamlined the recruitment process to reduce bureaucracy and eliminate 
barriers to joining the police. 

 Establishment of the Workforce Board, chaired by the Director of People, who 
has oversight of Recruitment & Retention.  

 New initiative to address our Detective Resources is to recruit Specialist Entry 
Detectives as part of our DHEP programme and also a Police Now Detective 
cohort. 

 
RETENTION & PROGRESSION 
 

 Established a Retention Project Board which incorporates wellbeing (to identify 
why people are leaving and what can be done to address issues which impact 
on retention) and reports into the Workforce Board. 

 Commitment of £500,000 to deliver wellbeing initiatives.  

 £1,000 wellbeing fund for each LPA, OCU and department 

 Approval to establish a career break scheme for police staff 

 Extension to the health surveillance provision for staff and officers 

 Menopause workshops and cafes 

 Provision of flu vouchers for all staff and officers 

 Support to increase the skills around mental health in terms of training of 
mental health first aiders 

 Review of Operating Model and shift pattern following feedback from officers. 

 Review of the promotion process to provide a more streamlined and less 
bureaucratic process. 

 Review of the PDR process to reduce bureaucracy. 

 BAME Professional Action Learning Sets to support development and 
progression. 

 
The PCC referred to areas such as Devon and Cornwall which were cheaper areas to 
live with affordable housing. It was frustrating for Thames Valley Police who trained 

Page 6



 

Officers who then sought jobs elsewhere. Reference was made to a report which had 
been submitted to the Home Office recommending that training costs should be 
reimbursed to the Police Service who had trained officers, should the officer leave to 
join another force.] 
 
5. In view of past delays with the implementation of IT projects such as the 
Contact Management Platform and the resultant increased costs, what lessons have 
been learnt which can be applied to other IT projects which are planned?  
 
[The Panel was informed of the actions taken in the last 12 months to address the 
lessons learnt from previous IT projects:  
 

 A standardised project process and governance has been embedded across 
TVP, HC and Joint ICT (JICT).   

 This includes formal stage gates at proposal and Business Case stage – tied 
to the release of capital funding 

 Additional scrutiny at the proposal and business case gateways to ensure all 
enabling departments have been consulted – built into process and template 

 Change governance boards now routinely challenge project proposals and 
business case that make assumptions about what can be carried out as part of 
an existing role vs. what dedicated resource is necessary 

 A number of “big bang” proposed project business cases have been rejected 
as too high risk (Single Instance Records Management System) or modified to 
deliver in smaller, lower risk stages (Digital Evidence Management Project)   

 Post business case approval, all projects are required to go through a project 
initiation gateway and monthly programme reporting once in-flight  

 The Joint ICT Project Management Office conducts regular health-checks and 
stage gate reviews for all projects providing internal assurance over 
compliance with the project process for all projects involving JICT 

 A Project Portfolio Management (PPM) tool has been adopted by JICT and 
TVP Change Delivery team so that all in-flight project data is stored in one 
shared database 

 Resource modelling is now carried out routinely by JICT against key technical 
resource types and tracked against the PPM tool to inform decisions on 
resource allocation, pipeline planning and annual planning 

 The standardised project process has been incorporated into relevant DCC’s 
governance boards for TVP and Joint Projects – holding Senior Responsible 
Officer’s to account for the performance of their programmes 

 A Joint Portfolio Meeting (chaired by the two Heads of Change) is now held 
monthly with programme managers of all joint programmes including those led 
by JICT 

 Portfolio level risks and issues are tracked via the joint portfolio meeting and 
escalated to the DCC Collaboration Board as necessary 

 End of project and programme lessons learnt and now formally reviewed at 
governance boards and routinely shared with all project and programme 
managers 

 The DCC’s collaboration board now includes a remit to commission external 
project/programme assurance as and when it is considered necessary (an 
external health-check carried out during 2019 for the Digital Evidence 

Page 7



 

Management System project and external reviews for Equip (new Enterprise 
Resource Planning (ERP) system) were commissioned via PCCs 

 Change management training has been undertaken by key members of the 
Change Delivery Team and People Directorate Innovation and Change Team 
and incorporated into TVP leadership training courses 

 A joint internal audit on Force Project Lessons Learnt and Benefits Realisation 
(including ICT projects) was carried out in the first quarter of 2018/19 and 
identified actions which were progressed and monitored in a follow-up 
independent audit report in the first quarter of 2019/20. 

 
[The PCC reported that with IT schemes, expert advice is taken on costings of 
schemes, however, on a national level, these schemes invariably ended up more 
expensive. Reference was made to the Contact Management Platform which had 
gone live with the Hampshire Force and had been well received. It was due to go live 
in Thames Valley at the end of the month.] 
 
6. Police Community Support Officers are an important resource for local policing 
throughout the Thames Valley. Why have vacancies been frozen, particularly when 
they are a useful addition to visible front-line policing? 
 
[The PCC reported that in recent years there has been a steady turnover in PCSOs 
as many individuals have taken the opportunity to join the force as police officers. 
This means we have not operated at full capacity for some time. I can reassure you 
that PCSOs remain an important part of the policing family in Thames Valley. 
Reviewing vacancies as they arise will enable us to operate at current capacity whilst 
we take stock and review overall PCSO numbers and deployments in light of the 
significant increase in police officer numbers. Posts funded with partnership monies 
will not be affected by this temporary hold on vacancies; that will only apply to 100% 
funded TVP posts. 
 
The Chief Constable added the Government funding could not be used to fund 
PCSOs. The freeze would be reviewed.]  
 
7. With efficiencies aimed at back office staff in the Police, what work has taken 
place on collaborations or sharing such services with other organisations? 
 
[The PCC reported that TVP already shared a number of functions with other forces. 
For example, ICT, Joint Operations Unit and Information Management are all 
provided jointly with Hampshire. Our new Contact Management Platform is now live 
in Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. Provided there are no significant problems with 
the new system, we will go-live in a few weeks’ time.  
 
Fleet management is provided by the Chiltern Transport Consortium which also 
includes Bedfordshire, Hertfordshire, Cambridge, BTP and the Civil Nuclear 
Constabulary. We are in the process of implementing a new joint ERP system with 
Surrey and Sussex Police (called Equip). Counter terrorism policing and organised 
crime is delivered on a regional basis across the South East. All of these joint units 
have been tasked with finding efficiency savings and millions have been taken out of 
the TVP budget in recent years as a result of savings from these collaborated units.] 
 

Page 8



 

8. What plans are there for the use of £2.8m which the PCC will receive from the 
Ministry of Justice to fund victim and witness services? 
 
[The PCC reminded the Panel that Thames Valley PCC had taken victim support in-
house. The money provided by the Ministry of Justice was used to ensure that all 
victims of crime received the support they needed to cope and recover from the 
impact of their crime. We care about those affected by crime and work continuously 
to improve services and support for victims. 
 
Reference was made to the Victims First hub which had been established to act as 
first point of contact to coordinate the support provided to all victims and witnesses of 
crime, as well as family members of victims. It was available across Berkshire, 
Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire and provided help regardless of whether or not the 
crime had been reported to the police. 
 
Reference was made to the following services which had been commissioned for 
victims of crime for 2020/21: 
 

• A new adult specialist service which will begin on 1st April for victims of 
crime who require longer term or more complex interventions due to the high 
level of harm experienced. The service will also provide family support in 
partnership with the young victim service, some operational support to TVP 
where exploitation is suspected, and restorative justice when this type of 
intervention is sought by victims. This new service will be called the Victims 
First Specialist Service and it will be provided by Thames Valley Partnership 
and a network of specialist providers based in 3 multi-specialist integrated 
teams – with one team per county.  
• A young victims service provided by SAFE. An emotional support and 
advocacy service dealing with clients with shorter term or lower level needs. 
• A therapeutic counselling service for all victims.  
• DV medium risk safety planning. 
• DV complex needs service.] 

 
9. From a recent newspaper article which found that nationally only one in 200 
officers was dedicated to investigating fraud, what plans was the PCC making to 
improve this resource in TVP? 
 
[In terms of dedicated staff investigating fraud as their main role then in TVP, the 
economic crime unit (ECU) has a Detective Inspector and 45 dedicated staff (plus a 
Detective Inspector, Sergeant and 6 Detective Constables for cyber investigation).  
 
The Economic Crime Unit is one of the few in TVP to receive recent growth in recent 
years and has grown by 6 staff in the last financial year. Four of these were new 
posts created through additional funding (£208,000) and 2 were posts reinvested 
from elsewhere in FISO following the Efficiency & Effectiveness (E&E) review. 
 
A restructure has taken place to ensure all areas of Economic Crime are tackled not 
just fraud. There was a clear strategy to pursue investigations into the frauds that 
effect the most vulnerable people of Thames Valley and target the money laundering 
OCGs that sit behind the fraudsters.  

Page 9



 

 
There are 2 dedicated ECU investigation teams and a newly formed Criminal Finance 
Team to cover this area of business and also increase our capability to identify early 
and safeguard vulnerable victims of frauds and exploitation through increased use of 
the Suspicious Activity reports (SARS) database. In addition to investigations these 
teams provide support, advice and training to LPA staff in order to upskill the wider 
workforce in Fraud and Criminal Finance Investigations. 
 
There was also a strong prevent strategy led by the Action Fraud Team. We have 
fully embedded Operation Signature force-wide and this ensures all vulnerable 
victims of fraud receive enhanced safeguarding and support to prevent them 
becoming repeat victims. This team also has 2 dedicated fraud prevention officers 
who carry out force-wide proactive prevention campaigns and events (recently Op 
Radium - raising awareness of courier fraud). 
 
The ECU are also working closely with learning and develop to embed fraud money 
laundering training into the new Initial Crime Investigators Development Programme 
(ICIDP) and Initial Police Learning Development Programme (IPLDP) training 
programmes. ECU will deliver input on each of these courses going forward and 
fraud investigation master classes will be held later this year. The aim is to seek 
improvements in fraud investigation across the force. 
 
Strategically there was now published Force Fraud and Criminal Finance Strategies 
and an ‘ECU oversight board’, chaired by the Head of Specialist Operations and 
attended by the Thames Chiltern CPS lead to ensure good governance in this arena.  
 
The PCC commented that the true cost of fraud was bigger than the cost of the NHS. 
Fraud was not confined to any one area and the Police did not have the capacity to 
deal with it. Reference was made to the Lloyd’s case, whereby after a costly 
investigation by Thames Valley Police, the fine incurred by Lloyds went to the 
Treasury and none of it came to Thames Valley Police.] 
 
10.  With diminishing capital receipts available to TVP, how confident is the PCC 
that the use of revenue for future capital schemes is sustainable, particularly when 
there are no certainties regarding future Police Settlements?    
 
[Annual capital grant has recently been cut from £1.5m to just £0.4m. In the 
knowledge that capital receipts are also drying up we have increased our annual 
revenue contribution to capital expenditure (DRF) to £11m. In addition, we have also 
started to borrow for long-term estate projects such as Reading, SEROCU western 
hub and Maidenhead, if that bid is accepted by HM Courts, but this requires ongoing 
revenue funding for debt charges. 
 
We acknowledge that £11m is unlikely to be sufficient, by itself, to fund an acceptable 
level of capital investment in future years but it is a good start. This is an area of the 
overall budget that will require close scrutiny by my successor in future years. The 
PCC commented that with interest rates so low an option could be to borrow money 
as £11m was not enough.] 
 
The following additional questions were also asked: 

Page 10



 

 
• What was the rationale used for the purchase of Maidenhead Magistrates    
Court? 

 
[The Chief Constable explained that this was a prime site which could be utilised for a 
number of business uses. There were partnership opportunities with the site having a 
large footprint. Reference was made to accommodating the expanding CID, or 
sharing with other emergency services.] 
 

    With the extra 183 officers being allocated to TVP, how short was the Force 
from full establishment? 

 
[ The PCC replied that recruitment was constantly taking place with officers who were 
leaving being replaced so the number of officers was always changing. Reference 
was made to the imbalance of Police numbers in the country and that the Force in 
Merseyside for example, had more officers per head of population than the Thames 
Valley. Thames Valley was coming from a low base and there was the need for more 
officers. 
 
The Chief Constable commented that the 183 extra officers was a good start, 
however, there needed to be further pushing for more officers.] 
 

   The PCC was asked about fraud, particularly local fraud, such as that 
committed against charities. With burglaries reducing local criminals were 
now targeting other crimes such as those against charities where substantial 
amounts of funds were stolen. What level of resource from the extra 183 
Officers will be available to investigate this crime? 

 
[The PCC agreed that this type of local fraud was often overlooked and referred to a 
Conference he had attended at Portsmouth University where it was reported that 
around £2.3 billion was lost from charities through fraud and this was a major 
problem. It was acknowledged that presently Thames Valley did not have enough 
officers but this would be rectified with additional resource made available for the 
fraud squad and part of the local CID. 
 
Reference was made to finance and fraud investigators working with specialist fraud 
accountants.] 
 

    Reference was made to neighbourhood policing and concerns that 
neighbourhood police were being taken away and deployed and 
supplemented into other policing areas. This was causing resentment 
amongst officers. 

 
[The PCC replied that due to a lack of officer numbers resources had been stretched 
and officers had to be deployed where the demand was. The Chief Constable 
commented that 95% of their time was spent as neighbourhood police.] 
 

    Could the PCC provide details of how much of the precept increase is to 
fund the Police & Crime Commissioner’s office? Are there any plans to 

Page 11



 

increase efficiencies in the office as is being done in TVP’s “back office” 
services? 

 
[The Office of Thames Valley PCC was one of the lowest funded in the country, per 
head of population. Savings were made and reference was made to all police precept 
funding being allocated to policing and not to the Office of the PCC.] 
 

    Without a consultation process having taken place on the proposed precept 
increase, has the PCC received any public reaction to the proposed increase 
in precept? 

 
[The PCC reported that because of the lateness of the Police Settlement Funding 
announcement there had been no time for a public consultation exercise on a 
proposed increase in the Police precept. There had been no negative reaction to his 
knowledge.] 
    

    With crime levels generally increasing, but the number of prosecutions 
reducing, will extra funding be provided to improve the outcomes for victims 
of crime? 

 
[The PCC reported that rising crime and reduced prosecutions was a national issue 
and if there was a reduction in Police Officers, crime would increase. In relation to a 
reduction in prosecutions, this was a collective failure of the Crown Prosecution 
Services, Local Criminal Justice Boards, Prison Service and the Police.  
 
Reference was made to crime recording which had changed and which did not 
accurately reflect crime figures. An example was given of recording a burglary where 
there were five victims who had been traumatised. “Harder” crimes had reduced but 
there had been an increase in internet-based crimes such as cybercrimes.] 
 

   What significant savings can be achieved from further TVP collaborations? 
 
[The PCC referred to the possibility of looking at sharing facilities with the Fire 
Service such as a co-terminus but explained collaborations were difficult with the Fire 
Service in the Thames Valley as there were three Fire Authorities. This would be 
something for the future.]  
 
The Chairman commented that a future themed item for the Panel could be to look at 
the possible TVP collaborations with partners, such as the Fire Service with a view to 
sharing services such as buildings and vehicle maintenance costs, public utilities etc.         
 

    In relation to making TVP an attractive proposition in terms of recruitment, 
has there be any discussions with housing authorities regarding the 
provision of affordable or key worker housing? 

 
[The PCC replied that there would be difficulty with this as there were 18 local 
authorities in the Thames Valley and it would be difficult to get all of them signed up 
for this. It would be wrong to have only parts of the Thames Valley area agreeing, 
whilst other parts did not.] 
     

Page 12



 

    Reference was made to the recent terrorism attack in Streatham and the 
problems the Police had in relation to surveillance of terror suspects. The 
PCC was asked if TVP would have to pick up the surveillance bill if terror 
suspects were residents of Thames Valley. 

 
[The PCC referred to the poisoning attack in Salisbury which TVP investigated and 
that counter terrorism was centrally funded. The Chief Constable reported that 
policing of this nature came out of a national budget which TVP contributed to.] 
 

    The representative of Slough thanked the PCC for the continuing funding of 
Community Safety Partnerships which had carried out excellent preventative 
work in Slough. The Chairman echoed the comments made and thanked the 
PCC for being one of the only PCCs to provide funding to local CSPs.  

 
[The PCC reported that funding would continue for this year and possibly in the future 
as CSPs provided an important role in the prevention of crime and disorder.] 
 

    How can the PCC improve the publics’ confidence in the Police to justify this 
proposed increase in the Police precept? 

 
[The PCC commented that confidence would improve by continuing to carry out the 
job as effectively and efficiently as possible. The lack of resources and police 
numbers in certain areas had proved testing but the increase in officers would 
reinforce the publics’ confidence in the Police. The Chief Constable commented that 
a key aim was to improve outcomes for victims of crime. With a 73% increase in “stop 
and search” aimed at preventing certain crimes, the public can be confident that the 
Police were increasing their efforts to keep people safe.] 
   
RESOLVED – (1) That the Panel approved the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s precept for 2020/21 as set out in the OPCC report ‘Revenue 
Estimates 2020/21 and Medium-Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24’ having 
received satisfactory responses to the questions raised. 
 
(2) That the Panel noted: 

 Subject to final tax base notifications, the Council Tax requirement for 
2020/21 be set at £198.84m. 

 That any variation in the final amount of Council Tax income be 
appropriated to or from General Balances. 

 That the police element of the Council Tax for 2020/21 be set at £216.28 
for properties in Band D. This represented an increase in the Band D 
precept of £10, or 4.8%.   

 

5/20 ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT 2019 FROM THE JOINT INDEPENDENT 
AUDIT COMMITTEE TO THE PCC FOR THAMES VALLEY AND THE CHIEF 
CONSTABLE OF THAMES VALLEY POLICE  
 
The Panel was provided with the Annual Assurance Report for 2019 from the Joint 
Independent Audit Committee which explained how the Committee has complied with 
each of its specific responsibilities, during the last twelve months covering the period 
December 2018 to December 2019. 

Page 13



 

 
The PCC reported that the report provided an assurance opinion that the risk 
management and internal control environment in Thames Valley Police and the Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner was operating efficiently and effectively.  
 
Reference was made to the uncertainty around the budget for 2021/22 and the 
potential £2m shortfall. The PCC commented that the Police funding review was 
expected later in the year and at this stage the PCC did not know what funding would 
be received. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted and the Panel offered their congratulations to the PCC 
and the Force for such a good report from the Joint Independent Audit 
Committee. 
 

6/20 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN STRATEGIC PRIORITY - VULNERABILITY - 
PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner informed the Panel that his Police and Crime 
Plan set out the following aims for addressing vulnerability: 
 

• Improved recognition across the criminal justice system of mental 
health distress experienced by both victims and offenders leading to, (a) 
referral pathways into appropriate support agencies and (b) Improved 
access to mental health care from those in contact with the criminal 
justice system 

• Better understanding by police and partners of the extent and nature of 
elder abuse, followed by positive actions taken to address the issues 
uncovered 

• Improved police awareness and robust prosecution of those practising 
‘more hidden’ forms of abuse, including coercive control, stalking, 
harassment, honour based abuse (HBA) and forced marriage 

• Improvements in criminal justice experience and outcomes for victims of 
domestic and sexual abuse 

• Ongoing assessment by police of the benefits arising from Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hubs (MASHs), including the current arrangements of 9 
MASHs serving Thames Valley.   

 
Details of the TVP delivery plan action points which support and complements the 
PCC’s Police and Crime Plan were detailed in the report.  
 
Reference was made to the development of operational guidance to ensure officers 
and staff were aware of how to refer victims into the Victims First service. 
 
An update was requested on the review into MASHs, which included the benefits of 
having 9 MASHs serving Thames Valley. The PCC reported that a review had taken 
place and it had found that there was competence across different field areas (omni-
competence). They would continue to operate as they were, although it was not 
entirely satisfactory across the Thames Valley. It was reported that engagement 

Page 14



 

would continue with Berkshire local authorities regarding the number and 
effectiveness of their small MASHs. 
 
Reference was made to the plight of armed forces veterans with an estimate of 10% 
of the prison population consisting of veterans and 20% of the homeless being 
veterans. The PCC was asked what was being done to support these vulnerable 
people. The PCC agreed that more should be done to support veterans. The Chief 
Constable reported that those veterans who had fallen into crime and were taken into 
custody blocks, were often diverted to charities who supported veterans.           
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report and update provided by the Police and Crime Commissioner be 
welcomed and noted. 
 

7/20 POLICE COMPLAINTS REFORMS  
 
Head of Governance and Compliance at the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner provided the Panel with a presentation on recent reforms made to the 
Police and Complaints and Discipline process. 
 
The Panel was informed of the options which would be available to the PCC and that 
Thames Valley PCC would be taking on Model 1 which was to take on reviews of 
police complaints (previously known as appeals) whilst the Professional Standards 
Department (PSD) would continue to deal with most incoming complaints. 
 
Members were informed that the new complaint reforms came into operation on 1 
February 2020 and Model 1 would ensure that the PCC would be more customer 
service focused when receiving complaints. Reviews would be sent to Office for the 
PCC via workflow on Centurion. These would be signed off by the Head of 
Governance and Compliance with recommendations to Head of PSD. The Office of 
the PCC would provide data on reviews to the Independent Office for Police Conduct 
(IOPC). 
 
With the reforms there would be increased focus on learning and improvement (focus 
on forces – not individuals), local accountability would be enhanced and PCCs would 
have statutory oversight of complaints system within their force area. 
 
Reference was made to the new way of working which would help tackle some of the 
issues faced from the old process, ensuring clarity, less bureaucracy and more 
flexibility to deal with complaints to the public’s satisfaction. The reforms also 
included a move towards a more reflective practice, focusing on learning outcomes 
for both individual police officers and staff, and the Force. 
 
Improvements with the new system included: 

 Forces must be reasonable and proportionate – reducing need for 
unnecessary investigations. 

 Threshold for misconduct increased to promote reflective practice in policing. 

 More control for line managers. 

 Focus on organisational learning. 

Page 15



 

 Improvement on investigation timeliness. 

 Legally Qualified Chairs (LQC) – greater flexibility for pre-hearing conferences. 

 Fair and transparent process. 

 PCCs to make recommendations. 

 PCC taking on responsibility for appeals. 
 
However, reference was made to the negatives to the reforms: 

 There was no power to enforce recommendations, although this would not be 
an issue in Thames Valley. 

 There was variance in ‘reasonable and proportionate’ terminology. 

 Accepting reflective practice. 

 Minor complaints recorded with potential to be reviewed. 
 
As the reforms would allow individuals the right to request their complaints were 
recorded, this would also allow more individuals the right to review. This would 
increase the number of reviews. Also if the complainant was unhappy with the 
response of their review from the Office of PCC, it was thought there could be more 
complaints against the PCC, and potentially more complaints for the PCP Complaints 
Sub-Committee to hear. 
 
Reference was also made to complaints now being able to be made via social media 
platforms but that these had to be directed to the Force.  
 
Discussion took place on the implications of the reforms on the Panel’s Sub-
Committee and its officers and the Chief Constable commented that it could be 
helpful if the Panel received a presentation from the PSD on the likely impact on the 
Complaints Sub-Committee’s workload. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Head of Governance and Compliance at the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner be thanked for the informative presentation and the detail 
provided be noted. 
 

8/20 CHAIRMAN, POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER UPDATES AND 
TOPICAL ISSUES REPORT  
 
The Scrutiny Officer for the Panel provided a report which presented details of topical 
policing issues since the last meeting of the Panel. 
 
In relation to Child Sexual Exploitation offences, the PCC was asked whether the 
number of these offences had increased in the Thames Valley. The Chief Constable 
reported that numbers were down in the Thames Valley (-6%). 
 
Reference was made to retention of Police Officers and the Panel was informed that 
there was a Retention Project Board which looked at proposals to improve retention, 
however, around 20-25 officers left every month. 
 
The representative from Milton Keynes asked the PCC about the cost of the funding 
of the community engagements events held by ROC which would be taking place 

Page 16



 

across the Thames Valley. Subsequent to the meeting, the PCC reported that the 
cost was £7,000 for each location they were held in.  There would be four in locations 
in Milton Keynes and one each in Reading and Oxford City (£42,000 in total).  
 
Reference was made to the allocation of resources for counter terrorism and whether 
it was reasonable that Extinction Rebellion was on the counter terrorism police list 
group as an ‘extremist’ group. The Chief Constable responded that they should not 
be on the list group. 
 
The report and comments made were noted.     
 

9/20 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Panel agreed that for the November meeting, the themed item should be on 
Property/Assets – Looking at shared facilities between TVP and other “blue light” 
emergency services. 
 
The work programme was noted.    
 
 
 
 
 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 22 

 

 
OFFICE OF THE POLICE & CRIME 
COMMISSIONER FOR THAMES VALLEY 

 

 
PCC REPORT TO POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
19th June 2020 

 
 

 
Report Title: PCC RESPONSE TO COVID-19 
 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report presents a summary of how the Police and Crime 

Commissioner and Thames Valley Police have responded to the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic since the national emergency 
measures were introduced by the Government in March 2020.  
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Following the introduction of a national ‘lockdown’ on 24th March 2020, 

the Health Protection (Coronavirus Restrictions) (England) Regulations 
2020 came into force on 26th March. 
 

2.2 The instrument included provision that a person who contravenes this 
regulation commits an offence, punishable by a fine. Environmental 
Health, Trading Standards and police officers are required to monitor 
compliance with these regulations. Businesses that breach them will be 
subject to prohibition notices and potentially unlimited fines. It also 
provides that a fixed penalty notice may be issued by authorised 
persons (e.g. police constable, local authority or person designated by 
a local authority). 
 

2.3 Changes to the Health Protection (Coronavirus Restrictions) (England) 
Regulations 2020 came into force on 1st June 2020.National guidance 
to police forces is to use the approach of the ‘4 E’s’ – Engage, Explain 
and Encourage, with Enforcement only as a last resort. Enforcement 
should be focused on larger gatherings and/or repeat locations.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 22 

3. OPCC RESPONSE TO COVID-19 
 

 
3.1 OPCC BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN 
 
3.1.1 The OPCC implemented its Business Continuity Plans for dealing with 

the COVID-19 outbreak on 13 March 2020. 
 

3.1.2 In the policing context, OPCC staff undertake no business critical roles 
in dealing with the emergency response to COVID-19. However, there 
are some statutory public-facing services that the OPCC is required to 
carry out itself and there are other finance-related business functions 
that the OPCC undertakes which are critical to delivering other 
corporate statutory requirements. Accordingly, the OPCC’s own 
business critical functions are: 

 Victims First services to victims and witnesses 

 Independent Custody Visitors Scheme 

 Production of the annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
3.1.3 The initial OPCC Business Continuity Plan launched on 13 March 

was as follows: 
 

 Information was collated on which OPCC staff had laptops and 
mobile telephones and who was able to work from home if required. 

 Some laptops were reallocated amongst staff to ensure that those 
in the most business critical roles had access to them. 

 Victims First counsellors were expected to follow the advice of their 
own professional bodies but it was expected that they would move 
away from face-to-face contact with victims. 

 Attendance at external conferences was cancelled. 

 All non-essential public-facing events such as conferences were 
postponed.  

 Normal ‘business as usual’ internal meetings were to continue. 

 Increased working from home was anticipated.  
 
3.1.4 Further steps that were to be considered if the COVID-19 outbreak 

progressed included the following measures: 
 

 Mandatory home working for some/all staff. 

 Implementation of the Victims First “fall back” plan to prioritise 
contacts. 

 Cease making new Victims First referrals to counsellors. 

 Reallocate appropriately trained OPCC HQ staff to support Victims 
First. 

 Split the location of Victims First staff so that not everyone is 
working from the same office. 

 Turn off the Victims First telephone service. 
 

Page 20



Page 3 of 22 

3.1.5 On 16th March, the Government recommended that staff should work 
from home, where possible and appropriate. Accordingly, all OPCC 
staff were advised that, where possible (e.g. subject to the availability, 
prioritisation and allocation of laptops), they should follow Government 
advice and work from home and thereby minimise contact with other 
people where possible. 

 
3.1.6 The reallocation of available laptops enabled the OPCC to continue 

undertaking all business critical activity despite not all staff having 
access to a laptop.  In some cases it was possible for affected staff to 
use their own personal resources, such as their home computer, to do 
OPCC work. However, all staff were encouraged to stay at home and 
to be as productive as possible within the limitations of their role and 
the equipment they were provided with. Nevertheless, staff who were 
not in a position to work from home due to lack of equipment (e.g. 
laptops, etc) have continued to receive full pay. 

 
 
3.2 OPCC STAFF MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
3.2.1 The OPCC Strategic Management Group (SMG), which includes the 

PCC and Deputy PCC, now have a conference call on a daily basis. 
Any key messages are shared with OPCC staff by email/WhatsApp 
(see below). 

 
OPCC Staff Health and Wellbeing 

 
Sickness & self-isolation absences 

3.2.2 It was acknowledged that the reason for some staff absences from the 
workplace may not be limited to ‘working from home’. Government 
advice is that if an individual, or anyone else in their household, 
displays COVID-19 symptoms, they should self-isolate the entire 
household as far as possible for 14 days. A new reporting process was 
set up by TVP to log the details of any members of staff who are 
absent from work as a result of self-isolation, diagnosis of COVID-19 or 
needing to take off time to look after dependents. This reporting 
process has also been adopted by the OPCC.  

WhatsApp 
 
3.2.3 An OPCC-wide WhatsApp group was set up on 17th March to allow all 

staff to communicate with each other more easily, especially for those 
without laptops/phones who wouldn’t necessarily be able to pick up 
emails regularly, and help keep morale up. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Page 4 of 22 

3.3 OPCC COMMISSIONED SERVICES 
 

Victims Services - MoJ Coronavirus (COVID-19) Contingency 
Planning  

  
3.3.1 The Ministry of Justice (MoJ) advised PCCs that when developing their 

contingency plans in response to COVID-19, PCCs should follow the 
latest advice from Public Health England on proportionate measures to 
reduce the risk of exposure to the virus for both clients and staff.   

  
3.3.2 The MoJ victims grant agreement requires PCCs to offer some people 

face-to-face support as part of the services. However, the MoJ 
acknowledge that in order to comply with advice issued by Public 
Health England, Government and the World Health Organisation in 
respect of the COVID-19 pandemic (‘Advice’), PCCs may decide that 
face-to-face contact is not appropriate.   

 
3.3.3 The MoJ confirmed that, as long as it is necessary in order to comply 

with Advice and notwithstanding the requirements of our grant 
agreement, where you offer more remote forms of contact instead of 
face-to-face support, they will not treat provision of services in this way 
as being in breach of their grant agreement.  

 
Specific MoJ concerns are: 

   

 Flexibility of approach – the MOJ recognises that, in the present 
circumstances, there needs to be a more flexible approach taken in 
respect of how services are delivered as the COVID-19 virus will 
change both how services to victims are provided and the capacity 
of service providers to support victims, especially in the case of 
smaller service providers.  

 

 Access to support for victims - the MoJ advised that it is acceptable 
for service provision to move from face to face to more remote 
forms of support.  

 

 Fraud & risk to elderly & vulnerable victims - there is an increased 
risk of fraud, with the elderly and most vulnerable being targeted.  

 

 Increase in Domestic Abuse cases – there are also concerns that 
measures to tackle COVID-19 such as self-isolation might lead to 
an increase in domestic abuse cases.   

  
 

TV OPCC Victims First Service 
 
3.3.4 The Victims First team operates out of the Royal Berkshire Fire and 

Rescue Service HQ near Reading. However, with effect from 17th 
March and in accordance with the above MoJ advice, Victims First staff 

Page 22



Page 5 of 22 

were also encouraged to work from home using laptops issued to them 
by the OPCC as a deliverer of a ‘business critical’ service. 

 
 

COVID-19 Extraordinary MoJ Funding for Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence Support Services: 24 March 2020 – 31 October 
2020  

  
3.3.5 On 2nd May 2020 the Government announced a package of £76m 

extra funding to support victims and survivors of domestic abuse, 
sexual violence, vulnerable children and their families during the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  

 
3.3.6 Of this £76m extra funding, £20m will be administered by the Ministry 

of Justice (MoJ) through police and crime commissioners (PCCs) 
across England and Wales.  

  
3.3.7 The £20m funding will be ring-fenced for COVID-19 related emergency 

funding, and then ring-fenced again for spend on each of the three 
areas of need listed below. These funds will be distributed by PCCs as 
follows:  

 Domestic abuse services that are already commissioned by PCCs: 
£10m  

 Sexual violence services that are already commissioned by PCCs 
and those that are not currently funded by PCCs: £5m  

 Domestic abuse services that are not currently commissioned by 
PCCs: £5m   

  
3.3.8 The COVID-19 extraordinary funding is to meet the additional costs 

registered charities or social enterprise have incurred or will incur from 
24 March (the first day of ‘lockdown’) to 31 October 2020 whilst 
adapting their services during the pandemic, and to cope with demand 
increases resulting from it, during this time period.  

  
3.3.9 The extraordinary MoJ funding made available to the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Thames Valley is £814,000, broken down as follows:  

 Domestic abuse services that are already commissioned by PCCs: 
£407,000  

 Sexual violence services that are already commissioned by PCCs 
and those that are not currently funded by PCCs: £203,500  

 Domestic abuse services that are not currently commissioned by 
PCCs: £203,500  

 
TOTAL £814,000  

  
3.3.10 The deadline for organisations to submit their applications to PCCs was 

Friday 5 June.  PCCs have until Thursday 11th June to review 
applications and finalise their decisions before submitting the 
assurance documentation to the MoJ. 

 

Page 23



Page 6 of 22 

 
3.4 POLICE PROPERTY ACT FUND (PPAF) EMERGENCY FUND 
 
3.4.1 The PCC and the Chief Constable awarded voluntary and community 

organisations £103,740 in May 2020 after opening an emergency 
round of the Police Property Act Fund (PPAF). 

3.4.2 The Fund, jointly managed by the PCC and Chief Constable, is created 
from money recovered by the police and the proceeds from the sale of 
items that cannot be returned to owners, including seizures from 
criminals. In response to the impact of COVID-19, an emergency 
funding round was launched in April. 

3.4.3 There were 209 applications to this bidding round, seeking funding in 
excess of £1 million, and 32 organisations were successful in receiving 
funding of amounts ranging between £692 and £8,000. 

3.4.4 The PCC and the Chief Constable were keen to open this emergency 
funding round to provide vital grant funds to support the efforts of 
community and voluntary organisations that play a vital role in 
supporting Thames Valley Police with the emergency response to the 
COVID-19 outbreak. 

3.4.5 This funding will support projects that have been supporting TVP’s 
response to the outbreak and will help people across our communities. 

3.4.6 This is the first bidding round of the PPAF for 2020/21 and there is set 
to be another round later in the year. 

 
3.5 OPCC INDEPENDENT CUSTODY VISITING SCHEME (ICVS) 
 
3.5.1 We made the decision to suspend all face-to-face custody visiting and 

began this new temporary measure on 26 March 2020 in order to 
reduce the risk to custody visitors, detention officers and detainees. 

 
3.5.2 Given the increased spread of COVID-19 and the raised level of risk to 

the public, a number of our independent custody visitors (ICVs) had 
already expressed their reluctance in continuing to visit Custody Suites. 
Accordingly, following consultation with the Force, custody visitors were 
contacted and instructed to suspend visits during the pandemic.   

 
3.5.3 In line with national advice to try and identify alternative methods of 

monitoring custody arrangements, and in order to maintain a 
satisfactory level of custody visiting and monitoring whilst ensuring 
there is no risk to the ICVs, we have implemented a telephone visiting 
service, which seems to be successful.  The ICVs now telephone 
Custody Suites to speak with detainees and custody staff, and then 
submit a report electronically to our ICV Manager that is followed up 
where necessary, as would any other Custody Visiting report.   

 

Page 24



Page 7 of 22 

 
 
4. THAMES VALLEY POLICE RESPONSE TO COVID-19 
 
4.1 STAFF PROTECTION 
 
4.1.1 In relation to the government direction, that people should consider 

working from home where possible, this does not apply to the vast 
majority of TVP staff. TVP is an emergency service and not in the same 
position as most organisations. Equipment such as laptops has been 
re-distributed in line with priority functions and the force business 
continuity plans.  

 
4.1.2 Revised operational guidance was issued as dealing with persons 

actually and potentially infected with COVID-19 is now business as 
usual for the Force.  

 
4.1.3 A daily resourcing and resilience meeting oversees the situation 

concernimg staff who are self-isolating or displaying symptoms of 
COVID-19.  

 
4.1.4 Protecting the health and resilience of staff remains the Force’s top 

priority as hygiene supplies and face masks became increasingly 
difficult to purchase in bulk.  

 
4.1.5 To help protect officers and staff against the transmission of COVID-19, 

a new Health and Safety guide for line managers has been made 
available to support staff as the Force prepares for the controlled 
transition into the recovery phase of its response. The guidance also 
provides advice for managing those considered to be clinically 
extremely vulnerable. 

 
4.1.6 In particular, staff risk assessments must consider those from a Black, 

Asian or Minority Ethnic (BAME) background.  
 
4.1.7 On 23rd March TVP issued the following statement to partners: 
 

‘Key messages for partners: 

 As an emergency service, our priority is protecting our frontline to 

respond to those in need and safeguard the most vulnerable in our 

communities.  

 Whilst we are planning for a reasonable worst case scenario, as it is 

expected that we would, we are used to responding to significant 

incidents and our tried and tested business continuity procedures 

include plans to maintain a level of service that fulfils critical 

functions. 

 Thames Valley Police is taking all necessary steps to ensure we 

can continue to deliver our core emergency service during this 

extraordinary time. 

Page 25

http://hqcdms/livelink/livelink.exe/open/100783099


Page 8 of 22 

 We are carefully monitoring the Coronavirus situation and following 

the advice coming out from the Government and Public Health 

England to ensure we make the most appropriate decisions at the 

right time for the protection of our people and the public.  

 We have a range of resourcing options available that will ensure we 

can maintain operational effectiveness. These will be deployed in a 

measured way and at the right time to reduce the impact on officers 

and staff, the organisation and our core service delivery.  

 We are working closely with our partners within the Thames Valley 

Local Resilience Forum, which is helping the local authorities, 

healthcare providers and emergency services to stay in contact and 

share ideas, knowledge and support across Berkshire, 

Buckinghamshire, Milton Keynes and Oxfordshire.  

We are committed to working together to make our communities safer 
and we thank you for your continued support at this challenging time.’ 
 

 
4.2 COVID-19 IMPACT ON DEMAND FOR TVP SERVICES 

 
4.2.1 While TVP continues to face a changing demand picture during the 

COVID-19 pandemic, certain trends have become evident and 
sustained.   

  
Headline Impact Analysis 

 
4.2.2 The overall decreases in both 999 and 101 calls for service in TVP 

remain more significant than the national average and the Force is 
making greater use of online reporting.  

 
4.2.3 The fall in crime levels caused by COVID-19 has not been as 

significant in the Thames Valley as the reduction seen across all 
forces. 

 
Standing Trends   

   
1. Call demand has fallen, with TVP messaging encouraging a 
significant shift to online reporting.  
  
2. Reduced public mobility at the start of the lockdown resulted in a 
significant fall in crime. However crime levels are now beginning to rise 
again.  
  
3. Initially the COVID-19 lockdown led to lower levels of domestic 
abuse between ex-partners in the Thames Valley. However, the 
relaxation of restrictions has coincided with an increase in ex-partner 
offending.   
  
4. The reduction in public mobility has made identifying vulnerable 
children more challenging.  

Page 26



Page 9 of 22 

  
5. Filing at point of call and triaging are reducing demand on frontline 
officers and the impact on victim satisfaction continues to be monitored.  
  
6. TVP initially issued more Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) than any 
other force before reducing their use significantly following the easing 
of lockdown rules.   

 
4.2.4 Crime and its associated demand has continued to increase following 

the partial lifting of lockdown this month, as previously predicted. This 
is against a correlated decrease in FPNs. There is an important 
reputational aspect for the Force to consider if the public perceive this 
reduction, in addition to an increase in public non-compliance, as the 
Force not responding due to the prioritisation of other demand. 

 
 
4.3 OPERATIONAL POLICING AND CRIME IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

Domestic Abuse 
 
4.3.1 Domestic Abuse levels have now reached pre-lockdown levels for the 

first time. The potential time lapse between incidents of domestic abuse 
taking place and the time they are reported could result in incidents 
being more difficult to investigate. 

 
Drug Related Offences 

 
4.3.2 Since the relaxation of lockdown restrictions, there has been an 

increase in drug related offences. As lockdown measures are relaxed, 
organised crime groups can travel more freely. Therefore, it is likely 
that the number of drug related offences will increase. 

 
Child Protection 

 
4.3.3 There is a significant likelihood that there will be an increase in child 

protection issues being raised once schools reopen.  
 

Assault on Police 
 
4.3.4 The powers given to police to help tackle the spread of COVID-19 and 

the subsequent use of the powers by officers have mostly been met 
with support by the public. However, officers are facing heightened 
levels of criticism from some members of the public who think the 
powers are too heavy handed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Page 10 of 22 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND ISSUES 
 
5.1 Financial Position (as at 2 April 2020) 
 
5.1.1 The Home Office wrote to all chief constables and asked them to 

provide their best estimates of additional costs arising from policing 
COVID-19 over the following 12, 16 and 20 weeks. The Thames Valley 
Police figures reported at that time were: 

 
12 weeks £6.2m 
16 weeks £7.1m 
20 weeks £7.8m 

 
The working assumption is that these costs will be reimbursed by the 
Home Office.  Actual costs continue to be monitored. 

 
 
5.2 COVID-19: Policing Costs and Procurement of Personal Protective 

Equipment (PPE) -  
 
5.2.1 Letter from Chief Constable Dave Thompson to Chief Constables 

and PCCs (16th April)  
 

“I wanted to write to you regarding a series of financial issues 
concerning the current emergency to assist your planning and to seek 
and offer assistance. 

 
A. PPE Procurement 

 
A huge amount of work has been undertaken by the team at NPOC to 
ensure PPE can be secured and supplied to forces. This has required a 
significant effort as commodities are hard to source and competition is 
international. … Accordingly, we are dependent upon Forces, through 
their Police and Crime Commissioners, agreeing to contract on behalf 
of the service. 

 
I am very grateful to Police and Crime Commissioners from Thames 
Valley, South Yorkshire, Kent, Sussex and West Midlands for agreeing 
to undertake these orders on behalf of all forces.” 

 
 
 
6. GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
6.1 A command structure was established within Thames Valley Police 

(TVP) to co-ordinate efforts across the Force and with partner 
agencies. Much of the focus is on internal resilience.  

 
6.2 In addition to the resilience of the police workforce, significant scenario 

planning took place, not just within Thames Valley Police but partner 

Page 28



Page 11 of 22 

agencies including PHE, NHS, local councils as well as with the 
military.  

 
6.3 The work of all partner agencies is coordinated through the tried and 

tested network of the Local Resilience Forum and is vital to 
successfully protecting the public from the worst impacts of the 
pandemic. 

 
6.4 The PCC and the Deputy PCC have both attended meetings of the 

Chief Constable’s Management Team (CCMT) to be briefed on the 
Force’s preparations for and operational response to COVID-19.  

 
6.5 The PCC and the Deputy PCC also continue to participate in the 

Operation Restore ‘Gold’ group established by the Force in order to 
monitor COVID-19 related strategic planning and preparations. 

 
6.6 Furthermore, the PCC engages with the Chief Constable in regular 

scheduled one-to-one teleconference calls in order to be kept updated 
on all COVID-19 related policing and crime matters.   

 
6.7 The combination of these one-to-one discussions together with the 

PCC and Deputy PCC’s regular participation in CCMT and Gold group 
meetings ensures the PCC is able to monitor and scrutinise the nature 
and effectiveness of the Force’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MESSAGING 
 
7.1 The PCC and Chief Constable have both communicated clearly and 

directly with the public through issuing Statements (see below) and via 
their  dedicated website pages providing information about COVID-19 
related issues (see Appendix A for the PCC’s website page and 
Appendix B for the Thames Valley Police website page). 

  
a) Statement from the Police and Crime Commissioner (11th March 

2020) 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley, Anthony 
Stansfeld, said: “I, and the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, 
attended the Chief Constable’s Management Team to look at 
planning for the COVID-19 epidemic. 

"I am satisfied that all possible contingencies are being planned for 
within the constraints of police numbers. 

"Plans will be reviewed constantly as the situation develops.” 

 
 

Page 29



Page 12 of 22 

b) Statement from the Police and Crime Commissioner (24th 
March) 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley, Anthony 
Stansfeld, said: "The Government, with the support of Opposition 
parties, and on the basis of the best scientific advice, has imposed 
severe restrictions on everyday life. These restrictions will be 
difficult for everyone, but are necessary if coronavirus is to be 
brought under control and the NHS protected. The powers likely to 
be given to the police to enforce these new rules are wide ranging, 
but the vast majority of the public will do their best to obey them. 

“The police do their jobs with the consent of the public, and should 
only in a few instances have to enforce these new powers. It is with 
the support of the public that the police will be able to continue to 
provide safety to the people of the Thames Valley. It is up to all of 
us to make sure we do our best to prevent the further spread of 
coronavirus. 

"These will be difficult times for all public services, police officers 
and our staff are not immune to the effects of the virus. As well as 
supporting the NHS by enforcing the Government’s restrictions, the 
police must still continue to prevent crime and protect the public. 
Whilst some crime, such as burglary and violence, is reducing due 
to the changes, we are vigilant for an increase in domestic abuse 
and criminals who will sadly seek to exploit these new 
circumstances. 

"The Chief Constable and I are confident that Thames Valley Police 
will continue to offer the public the protection and support they 
deserve, but we do need the public to abide by the Government’s 
restrictions, and support public safety and the NHS. I am confident 
that the people of the Thames Valley have the common sense to do 
so. Remember the simple advice, stay home, save lives." 

 
c) Joint Statement from the Chief Constable and the Police and 

Crime Commissioner (15th April) 

Today (15 April) the National Police Chiefs' Council (NPCC) 
released figures of the total number of fines that have been given 
out by police forces across the country for breaches of the 
Coronavirus restrictions. 

The figures released are for the period between 27 March to 13 
April. During this time Thames Valley Police handed out 219 Fixed 
Penalty Notices. 

In response to today’s announcement, Thames Valley Police Chief 
Constable John Campbell said: “This is an unprecedented public 

Page 30



Page 13 of 22 

health emergency and an extraordinary national effort is needed to 
fight this virus.  

“Since the new measures were introduced we have had thousands 
of positive interactions with the public and the overwhelming 
majority of people have had either a legitimate purpose for being 
out, or have listened to the advice given by our officers. 

“However, on some occasions we have had to enforce the 
legislation. In the last three weeks we have fined a total of 219 
people of the 2.3 million population in the Thames Valley. 

“Most of the fines we have issued have been to groups, 
inappropriately gathering together in public places, or driving 
together in a car, for example ten fines were given to one group 
alone. 

“We have also made a number of arrests which have led to people 
being jailed for breaching Coronavirus restrictions or coughing at 
officers or members of the public. 

“Some of these breaches have been identified by patrol officers but 
a significant number have been reported by the public. In particular 
this Easter Weekend, as with many Forces, we had a significant 
increase in these types of calls. 

“We will continue to engage with the public, explain the restrictions 
and encourage people to stay indoors. However, when necessary, 
we will take enforcement action if people are not listening to the 
advice and are putting others at risk. 

“The restrictions are in place to protect the public and protect the 
NHS. 

“The great majority of the public have been staying in and stopping 
the spread of the pandemic, and I want to thank them for their 
ongoing cooperation and support.” 

Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, Anthony 
Stansfeld, said: “We entirely support the approach of Thames 
Valley Police in engaging with the public, explaining why the new 
rules are so important, encouraging people to follow the rules and, 
as a last resort, enforcing. 

“Some of those issued with Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) were also 
charged with other serious offences not related to Coronavirus. As 
one of the largest forces in the country covering one of the largest 
populations, and also the force with the largest roads network, I 
would expect Thames Valley Police to issue more FPNs than most 
other forces. 

Page 31



Page 14 of 22 

“We have found that compliance within the Thames Valley is 
extremely good and I’d like to personally thank members of the 
public who are doing their bit and staying home. We will continue to 
monitor the situation closely as the pandemic progresses and have 
every confidence in Chief Constable John Campbell and his team.” 

 

d) Statement from the Police and Crime Commissioner (11th May) 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley, Anthony 
Stansfeld, said: “Last night our Prime Minister announced the first 
tentative steps to release the country from the lockdown. This 
should enable many of us to get back to work. However, the phased 
release is conditional on the infection rate of coronavirus continuing 
to drop. It is up to all of us to continue to use our common sense 
and obey the rules. Likewise, it is up to the police to ensure the 
rules are obeyed. This, Thames Valley Police will continue to do 
with good humour and judgement. If the rules are flouted then the 
infection rate will escalate, more will die, and the nation’s economy 
will be further damaged. None of us can afford that. The public, the 
police, and the NHS working together can make sure that does not 
happen.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Anthony Stansfeld 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley 
June 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Page 15 of 22 

APPENDIX A 
 

PUBLIC MESSAGING - OPCC WEBSITE 

 

Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

In response to the ongoing Coronavirus outbreak, here are some useful 
updates which may help signpost you to the best contacts and sources of 
further information. This page will be updated regularly with news including 
statements from Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Thames Valley, 
Anthony Stansfeld.  

 
Getting in touch: 

Thames Valley Police (TVP) 

Thames Valley Police is asking you to please only call 999 if it is an 
emergency and 101 if it is urgent. If you can, use their online services on the 
Thames Valley Police website. 

For more information on coronavirus and policing, head to the TVP dedicated 
webpage (see Appendix *** below).  In addition, you can tell the police about a 
possible breach of coronavirus measures online where you can also find out 
about the new police powers. 

 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) 

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) is currently 
operating during normal working hours (9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday). 

Please use the following contact details to get in touch with us: 

 If you have a general enquiry for the Police and Crime Commissioner, email 
pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk. (Please note, our general contact phoneline 
is not currently being answered due to staff working remotely) 

 If you have a media enquiry, email 
OPCC.Comms@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk 
(Please note, the media enquiry inbox is currently being monitored 9am – 
5pm Monday to Wednesday, 9am – 3pm on Thursdays) 

 Victims First - as we are currently working with limited capacity due to Covid-
19 we are asking that anyone needing support from Victims First please make 
a referral using our online form: https://www.victims-first.org.uk/. Please 

Page 33

https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/advice/advice-and-information/c19/coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/advice/advice-and-information/c19/coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/tua/tell-us-about/c19/tell-us-about-possible-breach-coronavirus-measures/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/advice/advice-and-information/c19/coronavirus-covid-19/coronavirus-covid-19-police-powers/
mailto:pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
mailto:OPCC.Comms@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
mailto:OPCC.Comms@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
https://www.victims-first.org.uk/


Page 16 of 22 

provide the email address and contact number for the person needing support 
and a Victims First Officer will contact them. 

 For information on the proper procedure for making a complaint, please visit 
our Reporting Concerns webpage. 

You can also keep up-to-date with news from our office on social media: 

 OPCC Twitter - @TV_PCC 
 Victims First Twitter - @VictimsFirstTV 
 Victims First Facebook - @victimsfirstTV 

 
Latest updates from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

Read the latest updates from Anthony Stansfeld, Police and Crime 
Commissioner for the Thames Valley on our response to the coronavirus 
outbreak. 

 22nd May 2020 - £814,000 announced to support victims of domestic abuse 
and sexual violence across the Thames Valley 

 14th May 2020 - Thames Valley ICV scheme using telephone service to 
support detainee welfare 

 11th May 2020 - Voluntary and community organisations awarded more than 
£103,000 to support policing response to COVID-19 

 11th May 2020 - Latest update on COVID-19 
 15th April 2020 - Statement (Coronavirus update) 
 30th March 2020 - £100,000 available to community and voluntary groups 

following the outbreak 
 24th March 2020 – Update on COVID-19 
 16th March 2020 – Postponement of PCC elections 
 11th March 2020 – Statement about COVID-19 

You can keep up-to-date with the work of the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner by visiting our News and Events page. 

 
Latest updates from Thames Valley Police 

Read the latest updates from John Campbell, Chief Constable for Thames 
Valley Police, on the policing response to the coronavirus outbreak. 

 1st June 2020 - Community hub volunteers celebrated during Volunteers' 
Week 

 18th May 2020 - Figures show level of assaults on officers 
 29th April 2020 - Warning following an increase in reports of online child 

sexual offences 
 17th April 2020 - Message from Chief Superintendent Christian Bunt 

Page 34

https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/get-involved/reporting-concerns/
https://twitter.com/TV_PCC
https://twitter.com/VictimsFirstTV
https://www.facebook.com/victimsfirstTV/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/%C2%A3814,000-announced-to-support-victims-of-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-across-the-thames-valley/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/%C2%A3814,000-announced-to-support-victims-of-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-across-the-thames-valley/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/thames-valley-icv-scheme-using-telephone-service-to-support-detainee-welfare/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/thames-valley-icv-scheme-using-telephone-service-to-support-detainee-welfare/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/voluntary-and-community-organisations-awarded-103,740-to-support-the-policing-response-to-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/voluntary-and-community-organisations-awarded-103,740-to-support-the-policing-response-to-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/05/latest-update-on-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/04/statement-coronavirus-update/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/%C2%A3100,000-available-to-community-and-voluntary-groups-across-the-thames-valley/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/%C2%A3100,000-available-to-community-and-voluntary-groups-across-the-thames-valley/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/statement-on-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/statement-postponement-of-the-pcc-elections/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/statement-about-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-events/thamesvalley-pcc-news/2020/03/statement-about-covid-19/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/june/01-06-2020/community-hub-volunteers-celebrated-during-volunteers-week/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/june/01-06-2020/community-hub-volunteers-celebrated-during-volunteers-week/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/may/18-05-2020/figures-show-level-of-assaults-on-officers--thames-valley-police/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/27-04-2020/thames-valley-police-issues-warning-following-an-increase-in-reports-of-online-child-sexual-offences/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/27-04-2020/thames-valley-police-issues-warning-following-an-increase-in-reports-of-online-child-sexual-offences/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gfyqB-cYH1I&t=6s


Page 17 of 22 

 15th April 2020 - Message from Thames Valley Police's Chief Constable John 
Campbell 

 9th April 2020 - Message from Thames Valley Police's Chief Constable John 
Campbell 

 7th April 2020 - Thames Valley Police continues fight agasint domestic abuse 
during the coronavirus pandemic 

 3rd April 2020 – Message from Thames Valley Police’s Chief Constable John 
Campbell 

 25th March 2020 – Message from the Chief Constable of Thames Valley 
Police 

 24th March 2020 – Thames Valley Police Media Office working remotely 

 
Useful links 

Here are some links to further information, guidance and advice for the 
pandemic: 

 Latest Government advice and information 
 Latest health advice from the NHS 
 Wellbeing support available from Mind 
 Talking to your child about coronavirus 
 National Police Wellbeing Service (Oscar Kilo) Coronavirus Hub 
 Advice on home working from Oscar Kilo 
 Article from The Mental Health Foundation on looking after your mental health 
 Responding to Coronavirus (British Psychological Society) 
 Report cyber-crime, fraud and scams (Action Fraud) 
 Free support and advice for victims of crime (Victims First) 
 If you're worried about your mental health (Samaritans) 
 Looking after your mental health (Every Mind Matters) 
 Let's Talk Loneliness website 

 
Last updated: 4th June 2020 

 

Page 35

https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/13-04-2020/coronavirus-update--message-from-the-chief-constable/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/13-04-2020/coronavirus-update--message-from-the-chief-constable/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/06-04-2020/coronavirus-update--message-from-the-chief-constable/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/06-04-2020/coronavirus-update--message-from-the-chief-constable/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/06-04-2020/thames-valley-police-continues-fight-against-domestic-abuse-during-the-coronavirus-pandemic/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/april/06-04-2020/thames-valley-police-continues-fight-against-domestic-abuse-during-the-coronavirus-pandemic/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/march/30-03-2020/message-from-thames-valley-polices-chief-constable-john-campbell/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/march/30-03-2020/message-from-thames-valley-polices-chief-constable-john-campbell/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/march/23-03-2020/message-from-the-chief-constable-of-thames-valley-police/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/march/23-03-2020/message-from-the-chief-constable-of-thames-valley-police/
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/news/thames-valley/news/2020/march/23-03-2020/update---covid-19---thames-valley-police-media-office-working-remotely/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-information-for-the-public
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.mind.org.uk/information-support/coronavirus/coronavirus-and-your-wellbeing/
https://youngminds.org.uk/blog/talking-to-your-child-about-coronavirus/
https://oscarkilo.org.uk/category/covid-19-coronavirus-hub/
https://oscarkilo.org.uk/advice-on-home-working/
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/publications/looking-after-your-mental-health-during-coronavirus-outbreak?fbclid=IwAR2vd3D6q7eYP0xcQHNHSaB76NMmflroq10wefLic8O7--8tLus4j66GApM
https://www.bps.org.uk/responding-coronavirus
https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/
https://www.victims-first.org.uk/
https://www.samaritans.org/how-we-can-help/support-and-information/if-youre-having-difficult-time/if-youre-worried-about-your-mental-health-during-coronavirus-outbreak/
https://www.nhs.uk/oneyou/every-mind-matters/
https://letstalkloneliness.co.uk/


Page 18 of 22 

APPENDIX B 

PUBLIC MESSAGING - THAMES VALLEY POLICE WEBSITE 

 

Coronavirus 

This is an unprecedented public health emergency and an unprecedented 
national effort to fight this virus. Maintaining the best service to the public, 
protecting officers and staff, and supporting the nationwide response are 
Thames Valley Police's top priorities. We're in this together and each and 
every one of us has a role to play by following the government advice. 

Please see below the latest on our response and a list of answers to the most 
frequently asked questions to help the residents of Thames Valley to stay up 
to date with the latest Government guidance. 

The Government has issued guidance around returning to work and exercise. 

 

Our response 

 We are patrolling and talking to members of our communities in order to 
explain the government restrictions and the importance of abiding by them 
to stop the spread of Coronavirus and save lives. 

 Our officers will use common sense and discretion and we will be 
engaging, explaining and encouraging people to do the right thing. 

 We are grateful to the vast majority of our communities who are playing 
their part.   

 If people don’t take notice of the government restrictions: 

 We may ask people to disperse, 

 We may ask parents to make sure their children are abiding by the 
restrictions 

 We may enforce and issue a fine 

 If someone continues to ignore the instructions, our officers can arrest 
them if they think it is proportionate and necessary. 

 

Frequently asked questions: 

Where do I report large groups of people gathering?  

A person may now leave and remain outside of the place where they live for 
any reason. However it is still prohibited to: 

Page 36

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus


Page 19 of 22 

 Gather outdoors with more than six people 
 Gather indoors 

Exceptions apply for: 

 members of the same household 
 a person attending a funeral 
 an elite athlete and their coach or parent 
 work purposes or the provision of voluntary or charitable services 
 facilitating house moves 
 providing care or assistance to a vulnerable person 
 providing emergency assistance 
 providing registered early years childcare 
 avoiding injury, illness or to escape a risk of harm 
 facilitating access between parents and children 
 fulfilling legal obligations or participating in legal proceedings 
 the purposes of education 

If you see a mass gathering in progress:  

 Call 101 - if you see a mass gathering and the incident is happening 
now. 

 Anything else related to Covid-19 please use our online tool.  

 Call 999 - if a life is threatened or a crime is in progress (as usual). 

How much is the fine now?  

 The fine has increased to £100. Individuals will be informed about why 
they’ve received a fine, how they can pay it, and what the 
consequences of non-payment are. They should immediately go home 
if they have received a fine. 

 For those who continue to not follow the guidance, the fine can be 
doubled each time and summary prosecution can be sought for those 
who refuse to pay or comply. The £100 fine can fall to £50 if paid within 
14 days. 

 Receiving a fine isn’t a criminal offence and won’t require a court 
appearance if paid. 

What is classed as a reasonable excuse to leave the home?  

A person may now leave and remain outside of the place where they live for 
any reason, subject to restrictions on gatherings and overnight stays. 

Can I stay anywhere else overnight?  

No person may, without reasonable excuse, stay overnight at any place other 
than the place where they are living. 

Reasonable excuses include, but are not limited to: 

Page 37

https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/tua/tell-us-about/c19/tell-us-about-possible-breach-coronavirus-measures/


Page 20 of 22 

 attending a funeral 
 an elite athlete and their coach or parent 
 moving house 
 work purposes or the provision of voluntary or charitable services 
 providing care or assistance to a vulnerable person 
 providing emergency assistance 
 avoiding injury, illness or to escape a risk of harm 
 obtaining medical assistance 
 fulfilling legal obligations or participating in legal proceedings 
 facilitating access between parents and children 
 it is not safe for a person to live there 
 it being unlawful to travel or there is some legal requirement to stay 

elsewhere 
 the place where they are living is not available for any other reason 

What can I do that I couldn’t do before?  

You can now leave and remain outside of the place where you live for any 
reason, as long as you are not in a gathering of more than six people and not 
staying away from your home overnight. 

Am I allowed to re-open my business?  

There have been changes to the businesses that may open. 

Please refer directly to the government website for details. 

Local authorities and Trading Standards will lead on enforcing and monitoring 
the closure of businesses. 

My MOT has run out, what should I do?  

From 30 March 2020, MOT due dates for cars, motorcycles and light vans will 
be extended by 6 months. This is being done to help prevent the spread of 
coronavirus. 

Your vehicle will be automatically given a 6-month MOT exemption. This will 
extend your current MOT expiry date by 6 months. 

Further detailed guidance on MOTs and vehicle tax can be found on the 
GOV.UK website. 

Can I still go to a place of worship during lockdown?  

 On the 23rd March, the Government had the difficult decision to close 
all places of worship to help protect the NHS and save lives. This is an 
unprecedented public health emergency and an unprecedented 
national effort to fight this virus. 

Page 38

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-mots-for-cars-vans-and-motorcycles-due-from-30-march-2020


Page 21 of 22 

 National leaders for all faiths in the UK are supporting the 
Government’s decision and have provided guidance to worshipers of 
practical ways they can support their communities and demonstrate 
their faith whilst the places of worship remain closed. 

 Local faith leaders are working in their communities to support those 
who are most vulnerable alongside many other partners. 

 We are actively engaging with local faith leaders across our 
communities, we understand the distress not being able to come to 
their place of worship. However, we know our communities of all faiths 
recognise that the best way of saving lives and to protect the NHS is to 
stay home. 

Can I attend a family member’s funeral?  

The government has advised that funerals, burials or cremations are to 
proceed as normal, however only immediate family members may attend. 

Further guidance has been issued by the Institute of Cemetery and 
Crematorium Management. 

What will happen to those who are using the virus as a 
weapon i.e. deliberately coughing and spitting on people?  

 This is appalling behaviour and it will not be tolerated. People who 
deliberately spit and cough on emergency workers as well as members 
of the public will be dealt with robustly. This is an offence and it will be 
treated as assault. 

 We have already taken action with regards to individuals coughing at 
our officers 

Can I still call 101 to report a crime?  

We’re asking you please to only call 999 if it is an emergency and 101 if it is 
urgent. If you can, use our online services. 

If you’re looking for information about the government instruction to stay home 
and how that may affect you, you’ll find guidance on Gov.uk. 

We’ll be updating information on our services over the coming days, please 
check online for those updates.  

Are police stations still open?  

Please be aware that we have closed a majority of front counter locations to 
the public for the safety of both the public and our officers. 

The following remain open to manage Bail and Registered Offenders signing 
on: 

Page 39

https://www.iccm-uk.com/iccm/
https://www.iccm-uk.com/iccm/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-information-for-the-public


Page 22 of 22 

 Milton Keynes 
 Oxford 
 Reading 
 Slough 
 Aylesbury 

These front counters have an officer present but the doors will be closed. 

Anyone required to sign on will phone from outside and the officer at the front 
counter will sight them. Social distancing will be maintained. 

I’m concerned about frauds and cyber-crimes relating to 
Coronavirus. What should I do?  

Fraudsters are using the current public health emergency to defraud people 
looking to buy medical supplies online, sending emails offering fake medical 
support and targeting people who may be vulnerable or increasingly isolated 
at home. 

We’re advising you to think very carefully before you hand over your money, 
and don’t give out your personal details unless you are sure who you are 
dealing with. 

If you believe you have fallen victim to a fraud or cyber-crime, please report it 
to Action Fraud. For the latest information on fraud and cyber-crime, please 
follow Action Fraud on Twitter and Facebook. 

 

Further information, support and advice about Coronavirus: 

 NHS advice - How to avoid catching or spreading germs and when to 
seek medical help 

 GOV.UK - Daily updates on the outbreak, information and advice 
 PHE England - Daily updates, signs and symptoms, current risk level 
 Mind - Mental health support and advice 
 Victims First – free support and advise for victims of crime 
 Action Fraud – report cyber-crime, fraud and scams 

 
 
 

Page 40

https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-information-for-the-public
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2020/01/23/wuhan-novel-coronavirus-what-you-need-to-know/
https://www.mind.org.uk/
https://www.victims-first.org.uk/
https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/


Page 1 of 3 

 

 
OFFICE OF THE POLICE & CRIME 
COMMISSIONER FOR THAMES VALLEY 

 

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley to the 
Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel meeting on 19 June 2019 

 

 
Title:  PCC’s Annual Report 2019/20 
 

 

 
Executive Summary: 
 
Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, a Police and 
Crime Commissioner (PCC) is required to produce and publish an Annual 
Report on: 

 The exercise of the PCC’s functions in each financial year, and 

 The progress which has been made in the financial year in meeting the 
objectives contained in the PCC’s Police and Crime Plan.  

 
After producing his Annual Report, the PCC must send the Report to the 
Police and Crime Panel for review at a public meeting to be held as soon as 
practicable after completion. The Police and Crime Panel must make a report 
or recommendations on the Annual Report to the PCC.  In turn, the PCC must 
give the Panel a response to any report or recommendations on the Annual 
Report. 
 
The PCC must publish each Annual Report together with any response he 
may make to any report or recommendations made by the Panel. 
 
The attached Annual Report 2019/20 covers the activities undertaken and 
progress made by the PCC during the period 1st April 2019 to 31st March 
2020 in meeting the objectives contained in his Police and Crime Plan 2017-
2021.   
 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Police and Crime Panel receive and review the PCC’s Annual 
Report 2019/19. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 3 

PART 1 – NON-CONFIDENTIAL 
 
1 Introduction and background   

 
1.1 The PCC is required to produce an Annual Report in respect of each 

financial year. The Annual Report is the primary mechanism by which 
the PCC will review and report on progress in delivering the objectives in 
his Police and Crime Plan.  

 
1.2 The content and structure of the Report should be determined on the        

basis of  local preferences and need, and include: 

 How the PCC has exercised and fulfilled his statutory duties and 
functions in each financial year 

 The progress that has been made in the year in meeting the 
objectives in the PCC’s Police and Crime Plan 

 End-of-year performance against any targets set, including 
exception reporting on any areas in which performance has 
substantially fallen short of, or exceeded, expectations 

 Performance outcomes in relation to specific crime, community 
safety or criminal justice grants or feedback on delivery at a 
geographical area or departmental level 

 End-of-year financial positions, including how resources have 
been allocated, details of any significant under or overspend and 
the decisions made with regard to council tax precept 

 Aims and aspirations for the following year, based on any re-
evaluation of local need. 

 
 

2 Issues for consideration 
 
2.1 Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the PCC’s 

Annual Report must be sent to the Police and Crime Panel for review as 
soon as practicable after production. 

 
2.2  The PCC must respond to any report or recommendations made by the             

Panel concerning the Annual Report.  
 

2.3 The PCC must arrange for each Annual Report, together with his 
response to any report or recommendations made by the Panel about 
the Annual Report, to be published.  It is for the PCC to determine the 
manner in which the Report and any response is to be published. 

 
2.4 The attached Annual Report 2018/19 covers the activities undertaken 

and progress made by the PCC during the period 1st April 2018 to 31st 
March 2019 in meeting the objectives contained in his Police and Crime 
Plan 2017-2021. 

 
 
 
3 Financial comments 

Page 42



Page 3 of 3 

 
3.1    None arising from this report. 
 
4 Legal comments 
 
4.1 Section 12 of the 2011 Act places a duty on the PCC to produce an 

Annual Report relating to each financial year. 
 

5 Equality comments 
 
5.1    No direct implications arising specifically from the adoption and    

implementation of the Annual Report. 
 
 Background papers 
 

5.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
 

Public access to information 
Information in this form is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
(FOIA) and other legislation. Part 1 of this form will be made available on the 
website within 1 working day of approval. Any facts and advice that should not 
be automatically available on request should not be included in Part 1 but 
instead on a separate Part 2 form.  Deferment of publication is only applicable 
where release before that date would compromise the implementation of the 
decision being approved. 
 

Is the publication of this form to be deferred?  No 
 

Is there a Part 2 form?  No 

 

 
Name & Role 

Officer 

Head of Unit 
This document is the final Annual Report for 2018-19 

Chief 
Executive 

Legal Advice 
This document complies with the relevant sections of the 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

Chief 
Executive 

Financial Advice 
No specific implications arising directly from this report 

PCC Chief 
Finance 
Officer 

Equalities and Diversity 
No specific implications arising directly from this report 

Chief 
Executive 

 
  
Anthony Stansfeld 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Berkshire,  
Buckinghamshire  
and Oxfordshire

ANNUAL REPORT
2019 – 20

Page 45



Contents 
1. Introduction         3-4

2. 2019/20 Annual Progress in meeting     5-18 
 my Police and Crime Plan  

  2017 – 2021 Strategic  Priorities:  

 o Strategic Priorities
 o Thames Valley Police Performance Headlines
 o HMICFRS Inspection Reports
 o PCC commissioned and grant funded services 2018/19
	 •	 Community	Safety
	 •	 Victims	and	Witnesses	Support	Services
	 •	 Police	Property	Act	Fund
 o Statutory Responsibilities and Corporate Governance

3.	Summary	financial	performance:			 	 19-21

o	 2019/20	financial	year	accounts	
o Value for Money 

4. Looking ahead to 2020/21      22

5.	Appendices		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 23-24 

(A)	 	Roles	and	Responsibilities
(B)	 	Staffing	Structure	2019-20
 

P
age 46



3

1. Introduction

Welcome to my 2019-20 Annual Report 
as Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Thames Valley (PCC). This report provides 
an update on overall progress against 
delivery of my four-year Police and Crime 
Plan strategic priorities for the period  
2017-2021. 

My Plan was informed by a broad range 
of information that is reflected in five key 
priority areas:

• Vulnerability 
•  Prevention and early intervention 
•  Reducing re-offending 
•  Serious organised crime and terrorism 
•  Police judgment and reform 

While I give equal weight to all five strategic 
priorities, the key threads of ‘Vulnerability’, 
‘Prevention’ and ‘Re-offending’ are particularly 
highlighted throughout this report. 

In last year’s annual report, I highlighted how 
the Force had successfully policed two Royal 
Weddings and a Presidential visit - this year  
has seen a stark contrast to these events.   
The communities and the police family of 
Thames Valley Police were significantly impacted 
by the loss of PC Andrew Harper on 15 August 
2019. The nature of Andrew’s death on duty and 
his personal circumstances touched the whole 
force and the public, and I am proud of the way 
in which his colleagues and the whole force 
responded so professionally.

In every year, except for the last two, that I have 
been the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Thames Valley there have been substantial cuts 
in government funding to Thames Valley Police 
(TVP). The Force has now made savings of 
£100m over the last 8 years.  
 
 
 
 
 

Much of this has been achieved through 
improvements in efficiency, however some of 
the savings have resulted in the loss of police 
officers and a consequential reduction in 
capacity and capability. In part I have reduced 
this deficit by above inflation increases over the 
last two years in the annual precept on Council 
Tax. This I have done reluctantly, but to maintain 
the high standard of policing I require for the 
Thames Valley I have had little alternative.

In spite of these financial imbalances TVP 
continues to perform well, and is highly regarded 
by Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary and 
Fire Services (HMICFRS), and compares well 
with all other police forces, and especially so 
when compared to the other large and better 
funded forces.

The Prime Minister made his commitment to 
raising an extra 20,000 police officers nationally 
when he visited Sulhamstead, our Force’s police 
training centre, a month before he became 
Prime Minister. He has stuck to this commitment 
and TVP have already recruited the first 180 new 
officers over and above normal recruitment.  
We do not know yet how many more extra 
officers we will be able to recruit over the next 
two years, but, depending on how the formula  
grant is reassessed, it should be at least 300, 
giving a total of at least 480 extra officers. 
This will result in a substantial improvement in 
policing in all areas.

My office has effectively managed our Ministry 
of Justice grant funding to provide a range 
of victim and witness support services. Our 
‘Victims First’ service is now its second year 
of operation and continues to offer support 
through a single point of contact for victims  
and witnesses of crime, including affected  
family members. 

During 2019/20 I have provided community 
safety grants totalling £2.7m to county and 
unitary councils in the Thames Valley area to 
help them to support me in delivering my Police 
and Crime Plan strategic priorities. A summary 
of the benefits delivered from all grants and 
funding - including the Home Office’s Early 
Intervention Youth Fund - is provided later in  
the report.

As the financial year ended the Covid-19 
pandemic started. This has had a number of 
effects on policing, the full financial implications 
of which are still being estimated. On the plus 
side crime dropped steeply. With no night-time 
economy, and people staying in their houses, 
both violence and household burglary reduced, 
as did most other types of crime. Domestic 
Abuse and Child Sexual Exploitation were,  
and still are, of concern, but as yet the crime 
figures do not show any clear rise.  
On the downside much effort went into seeing 
the current restrictions were enforced in a 
realistic and common-sense manner, and 
that our own officers and staff were not put at 
unnecessary risk. 

During Covid-19 it has been heartening to see 
so many positive actions taken by members 
of the Thames Valley community. From taking 
essential supplies to those who are most 
vulnerable, to ensuring vital services can 
continue to run and support those in need. 
It is, however, important for us all to follow 
the Government advice on how best to keep 
ourselves and others safe and well in these 
unprecedented times and it will be a test for  
us all.  

The local elections for Councils and PCCs that 
were scheduled for May 2020 this year were 
cancelled owing to the Covid-19 epidemic.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

I was intending to stand down as PCC for 
Thames Valley, however my tenure has been 
extended for a further year. Notwithstanding this, 
both the Deputy PCC and I are rightly proud of 
the hard work and dedication of police, support 
staff and volunteers, whose tireless commitment 
ensures our communities remain safe across the 
Thames Valley. 

Anthony Stansfeld
Police and Crime
Commissioner for
Thames Valley

4

P
age 47



5

2. Progress in meeting 
my Police and Crime 
Plan 2017-2021
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: APRIL 2019 – MARCH 2020 
THIS SECTION HIGHLIGHTS PROGRESS IN 2019-20 TOWARDS DELIVERING MY POLICE AND 
CRIME PLAN 2017-2021

Note that due to the impact of Covid-19, the following commentary against my strategic 
priorities is based on the Force’s last published data as at Quarter 3 of 2019/20. 
The Force will provide a full year’s progress report on how it has performed against its own 
Strategic Plan later this year. This outturn report will be scrutinised and published (on my 
website) as part of my Level 1 public meeting where I hold the Chief Constable to account.

  
• TVP has been preparing guidance,  
 correct processes and communications for  
 the introduction of Stalking Protection   
 Orders. The implementation of these and   
 awareness around the Force will improve our  
 service to victims of stalking and harassment.  
 The College of Policing has provided a   
 number of training tools to be delivered at a  
 local level to educate officers around stalking  
 and harassment and the Orders.

• Between 1st April and 31st December 2019  
 TVP attended over 30,000 incidents of   
 Domestic Abuse (DA) and 53% of these   
 were attended within four hours. A change  
 in attendance policy was introduced in July  
 2019 and has resulted in an increase in the  
 overall number of incidents being attended.

• Safeguarding the victims of DA has improved 
 with the Force issuing an increased number  
 of Domestic Violence Protection Notices  
 (DVPNs) and Orders (DVPOs). TVP’s use of  
 DVPNs and DVPOs has increased  
 substantially since April 2019 compared to  
 the previous year. There have been 188  
 DVPN’s authorised and 167 DVPO’s granted. 

 

 
        
 

6

Strategic Priority 1   
- VULNERABILITY:
Managing demand on services through working together

• Are my strategic priorities going in the right direction?

 Yes, I believe the overall direction of travel is positive and remains on course to deliver my  
 5 key strategic priorities. I have highlighted evidence within this 2019/20 annual report which  
 demonstrates what has been (or will continue to be) delivered by the Force, my own office  
 and other key partners.

  As the financial year ended the Covid-19 pandemic started. Whilst I have been monitoring   
 events closely, it is clear the full implications for TVP, both operationally and financially, are still  
 being established. Despite some crime types seeing some potential reductions, these are likely 
 to be short lived. I am pleased, however, that my office - through our Victims First Hub  
 - have maintained a high level of support for those victims who have needed to contact us  
 during this difficult period.

 In light of the Government’s decision to postpone the PCC elections to May 2021 due to  
 Covid-19, 2020/21 will be my final full-term in office, and I will continue to closely scrutinise 
 progress in delivering against my strategic priorities. While I do not anticipate refreshing  
 my Police and Crime Plan in this period, my office will be closely monitoring the policing 
 landscape to ensure it is well placed to provide a full and effective handover to my successor. 

• Are we where we want to be?

 I am mindful that there needs to be a balance in focusing on the operational demands in  
 dealing with Covid-19 on one hand, while on the other, a clear need for a phased return to   
 ‘normality’. The long-term impact of Covid-19 on police performance will not be realised for  
 some time to come, and there will inevitably come a point where a period of reflection and  
 learning – both nationally and locally - will take place. 

 I intend to continue working closely with the Chief Constable and other key partners across  
 Thames Valley, to ensure I continue to meet my strategic priorities and that any knock-on  
 effect due to Covid-19 is mitigated in the best way possible. 

• The new investigative structure for  
 implementation in April 2020 continues to  
 be on track and the Force are working  
 towards creating a hostile environment  
 for criminals by robustly investigating priority  
 offences such as burglary and robbery,  
 whilst CID deliver quality and timely  
 investigations into offences of serious   
 violence, rape, serious sexual assaults  
 and other offences that would benefit from  
 a detective investigation. 

P
age 48



Strategic Priority 2   
- PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENTION:
Improving	safeguarding	in	physical	and	virtual	space

• Operation Signature (financial abuse  
 safeguarding) continues to develop and  
 improve through operational learning gained  
 from an ongoing assessment of TVP’s  
 response to identified potential vulnerability.

• When contacted under the Banking Protocol  
 by financial institutions that suspect a  
 vulnerable customer is being exploited,  
 TVP attends 46% of incidents within  
 15 minutes. The overall average response   
 time for these incidents is 22 minutes.

• 93% of our high vulnerability victims of  
 fraud were contacted within 48 hours of  
 a crime being recorded. 92% of victims  
 were subject to a thorough risk assessment  
 within 48 hours.

• Reductions continue to be seen in persons  
 killed and seriously injured on our roads (58  
 fatalities in 2019 against 80 fatalities in 2018).  
 Trauma management is now in place (TRIM,  
 Trauma Risk Incident Management) to better  
 support our Roads Policing staff.

• Rural Crime Week, in October 2019,  
 saw a number of events including a 
 securitymarking event at Bucklebury 
 Farm Park and user testing of Whatsapp 
 on Force smartphones in the South & Vale  
 Local Policing Area, creating a group for  
 rural communities (with over 60 members). 
 A number of local initiatives and operations  
 have also taken place to provide visibility,  
 reassurance and crime prevention.

• LPA’s use a Recency, Frequency, Gravity  
 (RFG) matrix to identify and track offending  
 levels of their most prolific and harmful  
 offenders. At the beginning of April 2019  
 there were 752 individuals in the highest  
 scoring category - at the end of December  
 this had been reduced to 686 which is  
 an indicator that local reduction / disruption  
 activities are having a positive impact. 

7 8

• The week of activity (Operation Sceptre)  
 focusing on knife crime was completed with  
 of national funding to tackle serious violence  
 has now been committed and the Home  
 Office is aware that TVP has completed its  
 spend ahead of schedule. This included  
 trauma bags, improved forensic capability,  
 GPS tags for a new scheme focusing on  
 those involved in violence, development  
 of educational package, permanent amnesty  
 bins, 180 ‘wands’, knife arches, development  
 of coaching programmes and the Force’s  
 True Costs campaign to tackle cocaine  
 use. Every TVP Local Policing Area (LPA)  
 has a dedicated plan for their proportion of  
 the spend.

• The current number of knife crimes recorded  
 April-December 2019 is 1,217 which  
 represents a 4% increase compared with  
 the same period in 2018. An important factor  
 in tackling knife crime is increased pro- 
 activity by officers across the Force, reflected  
 in the levels of stop & search and possession  
 of weapons offences. The Force has seen  
 an increase in the number of stop searches  
 carried out by officers during the period  
 April - December. A rise of 76.3% compared  
 with the previous year means that 4,461  
 more searches were carried out and of the  
 10,305 searches in total, almost a quarter  
 resulted in a positive outcome (such as  
 arrest, caution).

Strategic Priority 3   
- REDUCING RE-OFFENDING:
Targeting and managing harm and risk

 In addition, there has been a positive increase  
 in the number of possession of weapons  
 offences of 21% which is an indicator of  
 greater pro-activity in this area.

• The Gold structure led by the Head of Crime  
 continues to deliver a Force-wide burglary  
 plan outlining activity to be undertaken  
 locally to both reduce offending and increase  
 positive outcomes. Local Crime Managers  
 make best use of appropriate resources  
 focusing on effective and robust offender  
 management; standards of investigation;  
 effective crime analysis; crime reduction  
 campaigns and tasking processes. 

P
age 49



9 10

Strategic Priority 4   
- SERIOUS ORGANISED CRIME AND TERRORISM:

Improving	the	local	response

• As part of Operation Stronghold, TVP and  
 partners engaged in a national county lines  
 week of action in May 2019. Nearly 250,000  
 people were reached on Facebook. More  
 than 40 education visits in schools and  
 over 100 to taxi firms, landlords and hotels  
 were carried out. TVP safeguarded 96  
 people, arrested 79 suspects, and seized  
 £87,652 in cash. 

• Following an extensive review, the Force  
 identified a number of areas where it needs  
 to improve in the management of Organised  
 Crime Groups (OCGs) and county drugs  
 lines. Whilst there is evidence of some  
 excellent work across areas of the Force,  
 the review has resulted in a robust strategic  
 plan owned by the Force Intelligence and   
 

Specialist Operations unit which will ensure a   
more consistent approach to tackling OCGs.

• The Force continues to work on its internal  
 processes to record fraud incidents correctly  
 so that appropriate responses can be taken  
 in supporting fraud victims. As part of this  
 work the Force is looking at the forms used,   
 and information gathered when working on  
 fraud cases so it can safeguard the vulnerable.

• Expertise in modern slavery is being further   
 developed, with training delivered both within  
 TVP and to outside partners such as health   
 trusts. Following a successful pilot with Modern   
 Slavery First Responders, specially trained 
 officers will be deployed first in these instances -  
 this role will be rolled out across the Force. 

• TVP has been involved in the final  
 consultation on the draft victim’s rights for  
 the new national code. TVP’s victim  
 satisfaction group has introduced a  
 ‘welcome pack for new starters to the LPA’  
 to be piloted along with officer’s business  
 cards to provide to victims as a point of  
 contact with the Force. The group will  
 monitor the increase in victim contact and  
 Victims First referrals and will look to roll out  
 this approach across the Force by the end  
 of March 2020.  
• Victim satisfaction is a key priority for  
 the Force and the organisation has recently  
 launched a text survey to measure victim  
 satisfaction and capture areas of potential  
 improvement. This is also a key strand of  
 the Endeavour programme where the  
 Force is committed to delivering high levels  
 of investigation and service to victims  
 and callers.

• TVP have been preparing guidance, 
 correct processes and communications  
 for the introduction of Stalking Protection   
 Orders. The implementation of these  
 and  awareness around the force will  
 improve our service to victims of stalking  
 and harassment. 

• The Contact Management Platform (CMP)  
 Programme continues to progress well with  
 extensive functional and non-functional  
 testing completed  
 

 
 

Strategic Priority 5   
- POLICE ETHICS AND REFORM:
Increasing	the	pace	of	change

 Crime recording functionality has been   
 live across TVP and Hampshire Constabulary  
 for almost three months and full functionality  
 including 999 calls and Officer dispatch was  
 piloted on the Isle of Wight in December.  
 Full roll out across both forces is expected  
 in Q4. 
• The pilot of the Drone Unit became  
 operational in October and has reduced  
 our requirement on NPAS helicopter  
 deployments. The drones are supporting  
 officers for both pre-planned operations  
 and spontaneous incidents such as   
 searching for suspects committing crimes   
 and searching for missing people. 

Speaking at the Oxford  
Anti-Slavery Network.

PCC and D/PCC testing one of the new 
TVP drones at Sulhamstead.

P
age 50



11

TVP Performance  
headlines for 2019/20 
Overall crime levels reported to TVP increased by 7.6% in 2019/20 compared to the previous 
year (2018/19). There were 174,051 crimes reported across the Thames Valley during the 
period April 2019 to March 2020. Based on the latest available published figures, this 
compares to a national increase of 6%.. 

Thames Valley’s overall crime levels continues to remain low compared with ten and fifteen years ago. 
There were 6% fewer crimes recorded in this timeframe compared with ten years ago (185,611), and 
15% fewer recorded offences compared with fifteen years ago (205,293).

The latest published figures from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) show that knife crime 
- particularly in the larger urban areas - is driven by the number of knifepoint robberies. This 
national picture is to some extent reflected in Thames Valley and I know is a real concern for all our 
communities. Through Home Office funding, I have invested into a number of initiatives which have 
been set up to tackle this type of insidious crime – further detail of this can be found later in my report.

The demand from the public for Thames Valley Police services through calling 999 has remained 
stable through 2019/20 when compared with the previous year, with just a 0.2% decrease. In 
contrast the number of 101 calls made decreased by 52,962 calls. Improved management of our 
101 performance was one of the areas targeted for investment this year and it is notable that there 
was a 9.4% increase (52,259) in the volume of 101 calls answered. The average time to answer 101 
calls was also improved through the year and is now under 3 minutes. While the percentage of callers 
waiting over 5 minutes also improved and at the end of the year was, on average, 5.9%.

The overall volume of incidents between April 2019 and March 2020 increased by 0.6% when 
compared to the same period in 2018/19. The time taken to respond to immediate and urgent 
incidents continued to rise over the year and finished significantly higher than last year (immediate 17 
mins, urgent 174 mins). The Force’s demand transformation programme and additional officers from 
the national officer uplift programme will be key to the Force reversing this trend in the coming year.

Although challenges remain, there have been a number of successes this year. While ‘all crime’ figures 
are up by 7.6%, arrests are up by 12.6%. The Force saw a 4.1% reduction in residential burglary this 
year. A proactive increase in the use of Stop & Search (up by 58% to 13,657) is directly related to the 
increase in the number of possession of weapons (+18%) and possession of drugs (+21%) incidents.

The Force has seen crime reductions in a number of areas:

- Robbery of business property - down by 21.4%
- Arson down by 9.3%
- All other theft down by 7.9%
- Residential burglary sheds/ garages down by 4.8%
- Residential burglary down by 4.1%
- Burglary – business and community down by 3.8%

While the year ended with early signs of improvement, volume crime outcomes continue to  
be a challenge. There was a significant increase in both rape (8.2%) and sexual offence (6.1%)  
charge volumes on last year. There was also an improvement in investigation quality, residential 
burglary outcomes and personal robbery outcomes in the last quarter of the year, which may  
be early indications of the impact of the Force’s focus through the year on improving the quality  
of its investigations.

Significant work has taken place by Force Intelligence and Special Operations to improve the 
consistency of the Force’s approach to, and the effectiveness of, our disruption activities around 
Organised Crime Groups (OCGs) and County Drug Lines (CDL). There has been a 14% increase in the 
number of money laundering investigations and use of POCA (Proceeds of Crime Act) powers to seize 
cash and assets from criminals. During the year, the Force participated in two of the national CDL 
intensification weeks. Between 7 October and 13 October 2019, Thames Valley Police officers made 
100 arrests for drugs supply and other associated offences, recovered £65,983 in cash, and seized 
1,435 wraps of cocaine, crack cocaine and heroin worth over £17,000 pounds in cash. 17 weapons 
were seized along with 118 mobile phones. Officers also identified 19 vulnerable people and worked 
with partners across the three counties to safeguard them and attended 100 addresses where 
‘cuckooing’ has previously taken place. The Force also ran a campaign in 2019/20 under the title of 
‘True Cost’ to highlight the link between casual drug use and child exploitation. 

There has been an increase in the volume of domestic abuse (DA) arrests (for urgent and immediate 
attended crimes); up by an additional 2,074 resulting in a 45% arrest rate for the year. This rate has 
remained stable despite the volume of DA crimes we attend as the number of immediate and urgent 
responses are also increasing. The use of DVPNs and DVPOs (Domestic Violence Protection Notice/ 
Order) to protect victims has increased this year.

There were a number of criminal justice cases of particular note this year that demonstrate the quality 
of the Force’s investigative processes. 
 
 o Operation Silk was an investigation into historical child sexual abuse that resulted in three   
  separate trials and the convictions of 13 men, who were sentenced to a total of 186 years and  
  three months’ imprisonment with four life sentences.

 o Operation Naseby was an investigation that began over two years after the death of the victim  
  in October 2015. The case was covered in a Channel 4 film - ‘the Maids Moreton Murder’  
  - as part of the series ‘Catching a Killer’. The case resulted in a murder conviction and a  
  life sentence. 

12

P
age 51



13 14

HMICFRS	Inspection	Reports

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) conducted an 
Integrated PEEL Assessment (‘Policing Efficiency, Effectiveness and Legitimacy’) and I am pleased 
that Thames Valley Police was rated as ‘Good’. They found the Force to be outstanding in the way it 
uses its resources to meet current demand. In the period of cuts to policing, this has demonstrated 
that Thames Valley Police continue to provide an excellent service to the public.
Of course, we will continue to focus on areas which need improvement and we welcome the 
suggestions which have been made in the report.

I have considered and/or responded to a number of thematic HMI reports presented by the Force to 
my Level 1 public meetings during the year – these include: 

• Fraud: Time to Choose - An inspection of the police response to fraud

• Crime Data Integrity re-inspection 2019

• Leading Lights: An inspection of the police service’s arrangements for the selection and   
 development of chief officers

• PEEL Spotlight Report: Emerging themes from the second group of  
 2018/19 PEEL inspections

• PEEL: Police Efficiency, Effectiveness and Legitimacy 2018/19 - Thames Valley Police

• Shining a light on betrayal: Abuse of position for a sexual purpose

• Cyber: Keep the light on - An inspection of the police response to cyber-dependent crime

• Joint Targeted area inspection of the multi-agency response to children’s mental health in   
 Milton Keynes

Further details of these reports can be found on my website. 

Deputy PCC, Matthew Barber discussing parking enforcement with one of Thames Valley’s 
neighbourhood policing teams.

P
age 52

https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/information-hub/hmic-reports-and-consultation-responses/hmic-reports-and-responses/


15 16

PCC Commissioned 
services – grants and 
funding 2019/20
COMMUNITY SAFETY 

I managed a community safety budget 
of £3.0 million in 2019/20, of which £2.7 
million was allocated in grants to county 
and unitary councils in the Thames Valley 
area, and I retained £0.3 million to fund 
Thames Valley-wide and other priority 
service initiatives. 
 
The local authorities have used their grant 
allocations to invest in the following services  
and initiatives: 

• Youth offending including youth restorative  
 justice, intervention work with young   
 offenders and participation in youth crime   
 prevention projects: £814,810
• Substance misuse including Drug Alcohol   
 Action Team services, substance misuse   
 treatment provision, awareness raising and  
 education: £571,758  
• Domestic abuse (DA) including outreach   
 support, Independent Domestic Violence   
 Advocates, DA champions, awareness   
 raising campaigns to improve reporting  
 and access to support, and needs    
 assessments: £485,646
• Tackling re-offending through improvement  
 of take up of accommodation, employment  
 and education: £112,532
• Earlier intervention and prevention with young  
 people, including programmes in schools,   
 targeted local youth work, safeguarding and  
 diversionary activities: £296,022
• Local Community Safety service provisions to  
 maintain and improve local problem solving  
 and multi-agency work around crime and   
 anti-social behaviour reduction: £206,930

  • Programmes and events that take place with  
 and in community settings to improve   
 wellbeing and safety in local areas: £62,387
• Tackling hidden harms including modern   
 slavery, exploitation and vulnerable adults   
 without support networks: £85,973 
• Specific anti-social behaviour targeted work:  
 £80,503
• Other crime prevention activities such as   
 improved analysis of crime trends, training   
 of professionals, drugs dogs, responses to  
 specific rural crimes and burglaries: £40,204

The £0.3 million fund which I retained has 
been used to fund:

• Reducing re-offending projects: £49,755
• Youth, gangs and exploitation projects:   
 £44,810
• An elder abuse project: £30,012
• Contribution to GPS tagging project: £25,000
• Contribution to the Local Criminal Justice   
 Board: £25,000
• Contribution to Early Intervention Youth Fund  
 projects: £83,732 
• Other expenditure includes contributions to  
 Crimestoppers, the Modern Slavery helpline  
 and Modus software  

I receive an annual grant from the Ministry of 
Justice (MoJ) to commission services for victims 
and witnesses of crime. During 2019/20 I spent 
my full grant allocation of £2.763m to deliver the 
following services and benefits:
 
• Thames Valley Partnership received  
 £130,000 for Restorative Justice,  
 which has led to 73 potential case    
 conferences between victims a 
 nd perpetrators. 

• Refuge received £337,597 to provide an  
 Independent Sexual Violence Advisory (ISVA)  
 service and received 418 referrals between  
 1 April 2019 and 31 Mar 2020.

• SAFE received £448,384 to provide a  
 service to support young victims of crime.  
 During the last year they have received 795  
 referrals into the service and supported 756  
 young victims.
  
• Thames Valley Partnership received  
 £229,064 to provide an emotional  
 support and advocacy service to  
 895 victims of crime.

• Thames Valley Partnership received  
 £376,312 to provide an exploitation  
 and complex needs service (the Willow   
 Programme) to 376 vulnerable and 
 exploited people.

• Our Victims First Hub acts as a single point  
 of contact for triage and referral to  
 appropriate services for all victims across  
 Thames Valley. This service cost £315,578  
 and received 7,049 valid referrals where  
 successful contact was made with victims. 

 
 
 

• Our new network of specialist counsellors  
 cost £189,735 and resulted in 409 adults  
 and young people referred into counselling. 

• Our domestic violence medium risk safety  
 planning service was commissioned through  
 local authorities. Oxfordshire County Council  
 received £15,600 and managed 599  
 referrals, Buckinghamshire received £11,700  
 and managed 1,318 occurrences, MK  
 Act received £13,891 and managed 1,290,  
 Slough Borough Council received £15,600  
 and managed 1,437 occurrences and  
 West Berkshire Council received £15,600  
 and managed 1,065 occurrences. 

• We commissioned a Domestic Violence  
 complex need service from a range of  
 providers across the Thames Valley.  
 Oxfordshire County Council received  
 £139,359 and received 145 referrals,  
 Slough Council received £48,813 and   
 received 199 referrals and West Berkshire   
 Council also received £48,813 and received  
 72 referrals.

• We funded a ‘Modern Slavery Co-ordinator’  
 post which cost £40,711.

• We funded a Domestic Violence perpetrators  
 programme at a cost of £25,512

• £261,000 of local authority community safety  
 spend was included within the MoJ budget.  
 This provided additional domestic violence  
 services across the Thames valley area.

The balance (£0.126 million) has been  
spent on other services for victims, including 
commissioning costs.

Care   Empower   Recover

VICTIMS AND WITNESSES SUPPORT SERVICES

P
age 53



17

POLICE PROPERTY ACT FUND

The Chief Constable and I ran two public bidding 
rounds for grants from the Police Property Act 
Fund. In August 2019, £106,733 was awarded 
to 27 charities and community groups across 
the Thames Valley who each made a significant 
contribution to support my strategic priorities 
to ‘reducing reoffending’ and/or ‘improve the 
local response to serious organised crime and 
terrorism’. In January 2020, a further £166,800 
was awarded to 42 separate charities and/ 
 

 
 
or community groups regarding their work on 
supporting my strategic priorities concerning 
‘vulnerability’ and ‘prevention’ and ‘early 
intervention’. In addition, the three county High 
Sheriffs identified a further 11 organisations 
worthy of support who have received £75,000, 
in total, from the Police Property Act Fund. 

Further details on the outcome of the bidding 
rounds can be found on my website.

During 2019/20 I continued to successfully meet 
my statutory duties and commitments as set  
out in the Police and Crime Plan 2017- 2021. 
In discharging my personal duties, responsibilities 
and functions, I was supported by a relatively  
small team of staff within the Office of the PCC 
(OPCC). An overview of the roles, responsibilities 
and functions of the OPCC is presented at 
Appendix A, and the OPCC organisational 
staffing structure is presented at Appendix B. 
My performance, decisions and actions 
during the year were regularly scrutinised  
by the independent Thames Valley Police and 
Crime Panel. 

Through a mix of regular public and private 
meetings, I held the Chief Constable to account 
for his leadership of TVP and the delivery of 
an efficient and effective police service. This 
involved scrutiny of Force performance and 
progress against the Force’s Strategic Delivery 
Plan 2019/20, and was achieved through regular 
updates from TVP as well as engagement of my 
staff in key Force performance meetings and 
delivery groups. 

A joint PCC and Chief Constable Corporate 
Governance Framework is in place to ensure 
intended outcomes for stakeholders are 
achieved whilst acting in the public interest at 
all times. The governance framework comprises 
the culture, value, systems, and processes by 
which the PCC and Chief Constable discharge 
their responsibilities and through which the 
police service is accountable to, and engages 
with, the communities they serve. 

The Joint Independent Audit Committee 
provides independent assurance to the Chief 
Constable and myself regarding the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the management control 
framework and associated governance 
environment within TVP and the OPCC. 

It considers the internal and external audit 
reports concerning the business of both 
the PCC and Chief Constable and advises 
both parties according to good governance 
principles. It has oversight of general governance 
matters and provides comment on any new or 
amended PCC and Force policies and strategies 
with regard to financial risk and probity. 

18

Police Property Act Award Ceremony in February 2020.

STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

P
age 54

https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/get-involved/police-property-act-fund/


3. Summary financial performance: 
2019/20 financial year

  
A). PCC CONTROLLED EXPENDITURE 2019/20 

Annual 
Budget £000

Annual 
Outturn £000

Variance
£000

Office	of	the	PCC 1,078 958 - 120

Democratic	Representation 211 235 24

Other Costs 197 138 - 59

Commissioning Services

-	Community	safety	fund
- Victims & witnesses

3,200
2,769

2,731
2,790

- 469
21

PCC Controlled Budgets 7,454 6,851 - 603

B). GROUP LEVEL EXPENDITURE (PCC AND TVP)

19

A high-level analysis of the PCC’s budget and expenditure is provided below. 

The following table provides a high-level comparison between the approved budget for 2019/20 and actual 
expenditure at the consolidated Group level (i.e. PCC and Chief Constable combined).  The net revenue surplus 
for the ear of £1.196 million has been appropriated (or transferred) to general balances. This level of surplus 
represents less than 0.28/% of the Net Cost of Services which demonstrates strong and effective financial 
management of the annual budget.

Annual 
Budget £000

Annual 
Outturn £000

Variance 
£000

PCC controlled budgets 7,454 6,851 - 603

TVP	Operational	budgets	–	direction	and	control	of	the	Chief	Constable

PAY AND EMPLOYMENT COSTS

Police	officer	pay	and	allowances 254,321 254,102 - 219

Police	officer	overtime 10,115 10,785 669

PCSO	pay	and	allowances 12,848 12,574 - 274

Police	staff	pay	and	allowances 107,947 107,745 - 202

Temporary	or	agency	staff 6,789 6,789 0

Police	officer	injury	/	ill	health	/	death	benefits 4,131 3,578 - 553

Other	employee	expenses 2,852 2,892 39

Restructure,	training	&	conference	costs 1,679 2,354 675

400,682 400,817 135

B) GROUP LEVEL EXPENDITURE (PCC AND TVP) (CONTINUED)

20

Annual 
Budget £000

Annual 
Outturn £000

Variance 
£000

OVERHEADS

Premises 16,419 16,172 - 246

Transport 9,785 10,592 807

Supplies	&	services 54,691 53,777 - 914

Third	party	payments 11,444 11,398 - 46

Specific	grants - 57,998 - 58,004 -6

Force income - 34,781 -35,400 -619

- 440 - 1,465 - 1,025

OTHER

Capital	financing 16,505 16,985 481

Interest on balances - 890 - 1,369 - 479

Statutory	accounting	adjustments 125 243 118

Appropriation	from	balances	 - 3,523 - 3,343 180

12,217 12,516 299

REGIONAL COLLABORATION SERVICES

South East Regional Organised Crime Unit 18,442 18,442 0

Counter Terrorist Police South East 25,644 25,644 0

Chiltern	Transport	Consortium 19,430 19,430 0

Regional	CT	firearms	specialist	officers	 4,742 4,742 0

Government	grants	and	partnership	income - 68,258 - 68,258 0

0 0 0

Cost	of	Services 419,913 418,719 - 1,194

Funded	by:

General grant income - 231,836 - 227,382 0

Council	tax - 188,078 - 164,089 - 1

Net	Revenue	position 0 307 - 1,196

P
age 55



Value for money 
 
After identifying cashable efficiency savings 
of £3.5 million, the police grant settlement, 
coupled with the increase in council tax, 
enabled me to invest around £37.6m in 
operational policing services in 2019/20. 
 
This includes: 
• £13.5m for pay and price rises 
• £13.4m for additional police officers  
 including training, equipment and other  
 essential infrastructure 
• £5.7m for strategic investment 
• £5m for other growth pressures
The financial and operational demands facing 
the Force mean that it is more important than 
ever that we continue to review, challenge and 
improve our services to ensure we focus our 
resources on priority areas. 
£106 million has already been removed from  
the base revenue budget since 2010/11 and 
plans are in place to remove at least another 
£14 million over the next four years (2020/21  
to 2023/24), including £3.5 million in 2020/21. 

Total actual and planned cash savings therefore 
amount to £120 million, which equates to 27% 
of the net revenue budget in 2020/21.

Looking to 2020/21, identified savings include:  
• Review of the People Services department 
• Review of the Force Intelligence and   
 Specialist Operations Unit 
• Review of central budget requirements,   
 including ICT and forensics 

However, Thames Valley Police has a long 
history of successfully delivering productivity 
savings and using these to balance annual 
budgets or reinvesting them in frontline policing, 
a strategy that has been widely scrutinised 
and praised by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate 
of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) during various inspections and 
reports. I am therefore confident that my 
2020/21 budget protects our communities 
today and our plans for the future. Further 
details of all productivity savings can be found in 
the Budget Book for 2020/21 which is posted 
on the website. 

21

Prime Minister Boris Johnson inspects one of TVP’s transport unit and discusses how 
Thames Valley is leading a consortium of Police Forces delivering vehicle purchasing and 
maintenance more efficiently.

4. Looking ahead to 2020/21 
Statistics are not a perfect measure of 
police performance. It can never reflect  
all the great work policing does – things like 
community engagement, crime prevention, 
safeguarding victims, or dealing with people 
in mental health crisis.  
When holding the Chief Constable to account,  
I will continue to consider all these issues, rather 
than relying on raw data alone. This will be 
particularly important over the next 12 months 
as we reemerge from the Covid-19 crisis, when 
my Deputy and I look to review the policing 
landscape across the Thames Valley.    
During 2020/21 I will be supporting  
communities that have been affected by 
Covid-19 in two key areas: 
• The Chief Constable and I will be awarding  
 voluntary and community organisations of  
 over £103,00 after opening an emergency  
 round of the Police Property Act Fund (PPAF).  
 This is in response to the impact of the  
 Covid-19 outbreak - both the Chief Constable  
 and I are keen to provide vital grant funds to  
 support the efforts of key projects across the  
 Thames Valley. This is the first round of the  
 PPAF for 2020/2021 and there is set to be  
 another round later in the year. Full details of  
 organisations who have been awarded   
 funding have been published on my website.  
• At the time of writing, the Ministry of Justice  
 has just awarded £814,000 ‘extraordinary  
 funding’ for the Thames Valley – this will be  
 available to charitable organisations who have  
 been impacted by the coronavirus pandemic  
 and who support victims of crime. I am  
 delighted to help these organisations; we   
 know that the lockdown will mean that  
 there could be increases in cases of domestic  
 abuse and sexual violence, which is extremely  
 concerning. The funding is available for   
 additional costs from the period 24th March  
 – 31st October 2020 only, and aims to allow  
 organisations to meet the extra costs cost   
 incurred whilst adapting their services during  
 the pandemic. Further detail of those   
 successful charitable organisations who have  
 been awarded funding will be published on my  
 website in due course. 

22

Once the threat of Covid19 has passed, 
there will inevitably need to be a business as 
usual approach. From a crime performance 
perspective, one of the key areas that I expect 
the Force to focus on will be outcome rates, 
principally for knife crime, residential burglary, 
robbery, and domestic abuse offences. 
The Force, through its current ‘Endeavour 
programme’ which focuses on improving 
investigative standards, will undoubtedly continue 
to show a positive direction of travel here. I am 
also confident that once we see an uplift in police 
officer numbers as promised by the Government, 
we will see a substantial improvement in policing 
in all areas across the Force. 
Beginning in April 2020, Thames Valley 
Partnership will deliver a Specialist Service for 
Adult Victims while SAFE! has been awarded a 
further three-year contract to provide services 
to young victims of crime across the Thames 
Valley. I am committed to providing accessible, 
high quality services to victims of crime and I 
am pleased to be working with Thames Valley 
Partnership and SAFE! to deliver this specialist 
support. We are providing additional funding for 
these contracts which will focus on the unique 
trauma experienced by victims and their individual 
needs rather than the type of crime they have 
faced. This will enable victims to receive an 
individual and tailored approach to their support 
to help them to cope and recover from the crime 
or abuse they have experienced. The services will 
also address some gaps in provision that we’ve 
recognised, such as support for younger children 
who have been a victim or witness to a crime, 
adult victims of serious crimes such as violence 
or cyber-crime who have not previously had 
access to specialist support, and whole families 
who have been traumatised by the impact of 
a crime. 
Both my Deputy PCC and I look forward to 
working with the Chief Constable and other 
officers and staff of TVP, as well as with my 
other service partners, over the next 12 months. 
2020/21 is my final full-term year in office, and my 
office will be closely monitoring the Thames Valley 
policing landscape to ensure it is well placed to 
allow me to provide a full and effective handover 
to my successor in May 2021.

P
age 56

https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/information-hub/what-we-spend-and-how-we-spend-it/


S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
ol

ic
y 

&
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g
S

tra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

y 
(e

.g
. c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
se

tti
ng

)
S

tra
te

gi
c 

no
n-

fin
an

ci
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
   

(e
.g

. a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t; 
H

R
, I

C
T)

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ha
nd

lin
g

‘P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l &
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 P
an

el
’

–
su

pp
or

t &
 li

ai
so

n
C

hi
ef

 C
on

st
ab

le
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
is

m
is

sa
ls

Th
am

es
 V

al
le

y 
P

ol
ic

e 
&

 C
rim

e 
P

an
el

 
–

su
pp

or
t &

 li
ai

so
n

Fr
ee

do
m

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

&
 D

at
a 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

P
ol

ic
e 

A
pp

ea
ls

 T
rib

un
al

s 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
s

 o
f c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 F
or

ce
 

–
su

pp
or

t &
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

‘T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
&

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
’ –

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 ‘S

pe
ci

fie
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n’

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t

P
C

C
 D

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

O
PC

C
 le

ga
l s

er
vi

ce
s

Li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 T
VP

 re
 s

et
tle

m
en

t o
f l

eg
al

 c
iv

il 
cl

ai
m

s
& 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
 le

ga
l r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n
M

ee
tin

gs
 s

up
po

rt 
& 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
D

ec
is

io
n 

re
co

rd
in

g 
& 

re
po

rti
ng

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

C
us

to
dy

 V
is

it
in

g 
S

ch
em

e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 &
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f s

ch
em

e
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

& 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

IC
V 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs

O
P

C
C

 B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
 

PC
C

 c
as

ew
or

k 
& 

co
rre

sp
on

de
nc

e
Se

cr
et

ar
ia

l s
up

po
rt

O
ffi

ce
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

IC
T 

an
d 

H
R

 s
up

po
rt

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

ol
ic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

Po
lic

e 
& 

C
rim

e 
Pl

an
 - 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

lo
ca

l p
rio

rit
ie

s 
& 

po
lic

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Po

lic
in

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t -

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
lo

ca
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

n
to

 n
at

io
na

l p
ol

ic
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
Lo

ca
l P

C
C

 s
er

vi
ce

 &
 p

ol
ic

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
R

es
ea

rc
h

P
R

, C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 &
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t 

Pr
es

s 
& 

m
ed

ia
 re

la
tio

ns
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

& 
ot

he
r s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
&

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 &

 in
itia

tiv
es

Pu
bl

ic
 &

 p
ar

tn
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t e

ve
nt

s
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f P
C

C
 w

eb
si

te
‘T

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

& 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lity
’ –

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

of
‘S

pe
ci

fie
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n’

 &
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f O

PC
C

 w
eb

si
te

 c
on

se
nt

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
on

it
or

in
g 

&
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

Po
lic

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 –
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 &

 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 P
C

C
 ‘t

o 
ho

ld
 C

hi
ef

 C
on

st
ab

le
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

’
Pa

rtn
er

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 –

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 /

gr
an

d-
fu

nd
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s
Lo

ca
l C

rim
in

al
 J

us
tic

e 
Bo

ar
d 

– 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t &

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 c
rim

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 –
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

& 
re

vi
ew

An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t –
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n

S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y,
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
&

 G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng

Vi
ct

im
s 

Fi
rs

t H
ub

Vi
ct

im
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

& 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y

Fu
nd

 g
ra

nt
 a

w
ar

ds

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t 

B
ud

ge
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

 s
et

tin
g 

Fo
rc

e 
bu

dg
et

 
&

 P
C

C
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

dg
et

s
B

ud
ge

t s
cr

ut
in

y,
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

&
 re

po
rti

ng
Tr

ea
su

ry
 m

an
ag

em
en

t
Te

ch
ni

ca
l f

in
an

ci
al

 a
dv

ic
e 

(e
.g

. V
A

T)
O

P
C

C
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
te

w
ar

ds
hi

p 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tro
l &

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f c
on

tro
l a

cc
ou

nt
s

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

nn
ua

l a
cc

ou
nt

s

A
ud

it
, G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
&

 R
is

k 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
- s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f 

P
C

C
 C

FO
 a

nd
 C

C
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

E
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
- l

ia
is

on
Jo

in
t I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 -

su
pp

or
t &

 li
ai

so
n

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f F

in
an

ci
al

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

O
P

C
C

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

O
P

C
C

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

In
su

ra
nc

e

FI
N

A
N

C
E

P
O

LI
C

Y
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
 

G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

6.
A

pp
en

di
ce

s
R

O
LE

S
 A

N
D

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

IL
IT

IE
S

 O
F 

TH
E

 O
FF

IC
E

 O
F 

TH
E

 P
O

LI
C

E
 

A
N

D
 C

R
IM

E
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
E

R
 (O

P
C

C
) F

O
R

 T
H

A
M

E
S

 V
A

LL
E

Y

23

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

M
ic

he
lle

R
ic

ha
rd

s

P
C

C
A

nt
ho

ny
 S

ta
ns

fe
ld

D
ep

ut
y 

P
C

C

M
at

th
ew

 B
ar

be
r

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ce
O

ff
ic

er
 &

 D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

Ia
n 

Th
om

ps
on

H
ea

d 
of

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

&
D

ep
ut

y 
M

on
it

or
in

g 
O

ff
ic

er
 

V
ic

ki
 W

as
ke

tt

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
(D

ep
ut

y
C

FO
)

Ju
di

 B
an

ks

C
hi

ef
 

In
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it

or

N
ei

l S
ho

ve
ll

S
en

io
r 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

A
cc

ou
nt

an
t

C
ol

in
 S

im
ps

on

Fi
na

nc
e

A
ss

is
ta

nt

B
ec

ky
 C

ol
lin

s

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 

A
ud

it
or

A
m

y 
S

he
ar

n

P
ol

ic
y 

O
ff

ic
er

 (
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

&
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g)

C
an

dy
 H

ei
nr

ic
h

P
ol

ic
y 

O
ff

ic
er

 &
 

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

H
ub

 M
an

ag
er

E
dd

ie
 F

itz
pa

tri
ck

P
ol

ic
y 

O
ff

ic
er

 
(P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

&
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g)

W
en

dy
 W

al
ke

r

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

D
an

ie
lle

 
S

ta
nb

or
ou

gh

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

(T
em

po
ra

ry
)

Le
sl

ey
 G

or
m

an

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

C
hl

oe
 C

ar
te

r

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

D
ar

cy
 P

at
er

so
n

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ff

ic
er

M
al

co
lm

 W
ill

s

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t
O

ff
ic

er
 (

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s)

S
ar

ah
 S

to
ke

s

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve

P
au

l H
am

m
on

d

P
ol

ic
y 

O
ff

ic
er

(P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
&

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
)

C
at

h 
M

ar
rio

tt D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
O

ff
ic

er

(V
ac

an
t)

A
dm

in
 

S
up

po
rt

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

(T
em

po
ra

ry
)

A
ly

sh
a 

Jh
ut

ti

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
to

 P
C

C
 

&
 D

P
C

C

C
ha

rlo
tte

 
R

ob
er

ts

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

O
ff

ic
er

S
ie

rr
a 

R
ei

d

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

 O
ff

ic
er

 
an

d 
IC

V
S

 M
an

ag
er

Ji
m

 K
at

ou
zi

an

V
ic

ti
m

s 
Fi

rs
t

T
ea

m
 L

ea
de

r

N
az

ia
 A

hm
ed

C
ri

m
e 

A
na

ly
st

Je
ss

ic
a 

S
ax

to
n

B
us

in
es

s 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er

H
ol

ly
 T

ur
ne

r

H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
ho

na
 M

or
ris

on
P

ol
ic

y 
O

ff
ic

er
 

(P
ol

ic
in

g 
&

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
)

G
ar

y 
E

va
ns

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

an
d 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t

 M
an

ag
er

H
ea

th
er

 S
he

rk
un

ov

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
O

ff
ic

er

 A
sh

le
y 

S
el

lw
oo

d

TH
A

M
E

S
 V

A
LL

E
Y

 O
P

C
C

 S
TA

FF
IN

G
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

 2
01
9/
20

 (A
S

 A
T 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

02
0)

24

P
age 57



For further information about the PCC, his plan,  
the budget or how you can get involved, get in touch with 

us using the contact details provided below or visit  
www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk 

  
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

The Farmhouse, Force Headquarters
Oxford Road, Kidlington, Oxon, OX5 2NX.

Tel: 01865 541957 
Email: pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk

Twitter: @TV_PCC

If you would like this publication in any other format  
please email: pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk

Designed by Corporate Communications CC5614
© OPCC 2020.

Page 58



 

 
 

Thames Valley Police 

& Crime Panel  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 

2019/20 
 

 

 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



 

2 
 

 
Prior to April 2020, Thames Valley 

Police and Crime Panel (PCP) 

consisted of representatives from 18 

local authorities in the Thames Valley 

area (Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and 

Oxfordshire. With the creation of 

Buckinghamshire Council as the single 

unitary council in Buckinghamshire, this 

has been reduced to 14 local 

authorities. 

The PCP is a joint committee  

comprising of 14 elected members (one 

from each of the Oxfordshire district 

councils (4), one for each of the Unitary 

Authorities in Berkshire (6), and one 

each for Oxfordshire County Council, 

Oxford City Council and Milton Keynes 

Council.  

Buckinghamshire Council will have one 

Member plus four further local authority 

co-opted Members to meet the 

balanced panel objective. 

It can be contacted via the address 

below: 

Democratic Services 

Oxfordshire County Council 

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, 

OX1 1ND 

 

Telephone: 07990368048 

Email:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.u

k 

Website:www.thamesvalleypcp.org.uk 

Twitter: @ThamesValleyPCP 

  

 

 

 
 

The Police & Crime Commissioner 

(PCCC) for Thames Valley is Anthony 

Stansfeld and his Deputy PCC, is 

Matthew Barber. 

 

The PCC and his Deputy can be 

contacted via his office: 

  

Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner 

The Farmhouse 

Thames Valley Police Headquarters 

Oxford Road 

Kidlington 

Oxon 

OX5 2NX 

 

Telephone:  (01865) 541957 

Email:pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk 

Website:  www.thamesvalley-

pcc.gov.uk 

Twitter:  @TV_PCC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60

mailto:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk
mailto:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk
mailto:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk
mailto:contact@thamesvalleypcp.org.uk
http://www.thamesvalleypcp.org.uk/
http://www.thamesvalleypcp.org.uk/
https://twitter.com/ThamesValleyPCP
https://twitter.com/ThamesValleyPCP
mailto:pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
mailto:pcc@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
http://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/
http://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/
http://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/
http://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/
https://twitter.com/TV_PCC
https://twitter.com/TV_PCC
https://www.thamesvalley-pcc.gov.uk/


 

 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE THAMES VALLEY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL  
2019-20 
 
Councillor Bill Bendyshe-Brown (Buckinghamshire County Council) 

Councillor Robin Bradburn (Milton Keynes Council) 

Councillor David Carroll (Wycombe District Council) 

Councillor Nigel Chapman (Oxford City Council) 

Councillor Trevor Egleton (South Bucks District Council) 

Councillor Neil Fawcett (Vale of White Horse District Council) 

Councillor Steve Good (West Oxfordshire District Council) (Councillor  

Norman MacRae replaced February 2020) 

Councillor John Harrison (Bracknell Forest Council) 

Councillor Sophia James (Reading Borough Council) 

Councillor Kieron Mallon (Oxfordshire County Council) 

Curtis-James Marshall (Independent Member)   

Councillor Andrew McHugh (Cherwell District Council) 

Phillip Morrice (Independent Member) 

Councillor Mohammed Nazir (Slough Borough Council) 

Councillor Barrie Patman (Wokingham Borough Council) 

Councillor David Rouane (South Oxfordshire District Council) 

Councillor Jonathan Waters (Chiltern District Council) 

Councillor Mark Winn (Aylesbury Vale District Council) 

Councillor Howard Woollaston (West Berkshire Council)  

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

4 
 

 

Contents 

Chairman’s Introduction (Page 5) 

The Role of the Police and Crime Panel (Page 6) 

 
PCC’s Police and Crime Plan, and the Role of the Panel (Page 7) 
 

The Work of the Panel 

in 2019-20 (Page 8) 
  

Looking Forward (Page 13) 
 
 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 62



 

5 
 

 
Chairman’s Introduction 

 

I am pleased to present the seventh 
annual report of the Thames Valley 
Police and Crime Panel (PCP), and my 
first as Chairman of the Panel, which 
covers its activities during the 2019 
calendar year.  
 
I would like to thank the previous 
Chairman, Councillor Trevor Egleton 
who was Chairman since the Panel was 
established in 2012 in compliance with 
the Police Reform & Social 
Responsibility Act 2011. 
 
The objective of the Panel is to maintain 
a ‘check and balance’ on the 
performance of the Thames Valley 
Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
regarding his strategic objectives 
contained in his Police and Crime Plan.   
 
The Panel plays a vital role in holding 
the PCC to account and supporting him 
in the effective exercise of his duties. I 
would like to thank all Panel Members 
for the dedication and commitment in 
carrying out the Panel’s statutory 
functions which, in turn, help to deliver 
an effective and efficient policing 
service for the people of the Thames 
Valley.  

 
The Panel continues to benefit from an 
extremely constructive and positive 
working relationship with the PCC and I 
am grateful to the PCC and his Office 
for their engagement at Panel 
meetings, Sub-Committees and Task  
and Finish Group meetings and for the 
providing information in a timely and 
transparent manner.  
 
The Panel is also grateful for the 
attendance of Chief Constable, John 
Campbell at Panel meetings who is a 
great help in providing Members with 
an operational perspective to the 
strategic issues discussed. 
 
2020 has presented the nation with 
unique challenges due to the 
Coronavirus Pandemic. Thames Valley 
Police officers and support staff are 
very much in the front line and are key 
workers in the nation’s response to the 
impact the Pandemic has had on all 
aspects of everyday life. I would like to 
place on record my gratitude through 
the PCC, to the selfless work and 
professionalism of Thames Valley 
Police officers at this time of crisis and 
thank them for the vital service they 
provide.   
 
The Pandemic also resulted in the 
postponement of the 2020 elections for 
the PCC which has meant the present 
PCC, Anthony Stansfeld continues to 
hold the office till May 2021. The Panel 
look forward to working with him for this 
extra year.   
 
 
 
Councillor Kieron Mallon 
Chairman of the Police and Crime 
Panel     

 

Page 63



 

6 
 

 
The Role of the Panel 
 

 

The key functions of the Panel are: 

➢ To review the PCC’s Police and 

Crime Plan; 

➢ To hold the PCC to account for 
the delivery of the Police and 
Crime Plan – the panel has 
powers to request any 
necessary information from the 
PCC on his decisions; 

➢ To review and report on the 
appointment of the Chief 
Constable and other senior 
appointments – the Panel has 
powers to veto the appointment 
of the Chief Constable; 

➢ To review the PCC’s proposed 
police precept – the Panel has 
powers to veto the precept; 

➢ To scrutinise the PCC’s annual 
report; 

➢ To consider complaints against 
the PCC. 

 
The Panel has fulfilled its main statutory 
duties this year which is to scrutinise 
and support the PCC in his role in 
helping tackle crime and disorder in the 
Thames Valley. The PCC was elected 
to hold the Chief Constable to account  
to ensure an efficient and effective 
police force for the Thames Valley.  
 
It should be noted that the Panel cannot  

 
scrutinise operational policing matters,  
but can question the PCC on how he is 
holding the Chief Constable to account 
for policing in the Thames Valley.     
 
The Budget Task and Finish Group of 
the Panel worked with both the PCC 
and Thames Valley Police Chief 
Financial Officers on reviewing the 
PCC’s proposed police precept before 
the proposed precept was submitted to 
the Police and Crime Panel. The Panel 
agreed with the PCC’s 
recommendation of an increase in 
Council Tax for the Police precept, by  
up to £10 for a Band D property in 
2020/21 to enable policing priorities to 
be met.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PCC’S Police and Crime Plan 
and the Role of the Panel 
 
The PCC’s Police and Crime Plan and 
the various strategic police and crime 
objectives continue to be monitored 
and scrutinised to enable the 
effectiveness of the Police performance 
in the Thames Valley to be monitored.    
 
This document is of great importance to 
the Police and Crime Panel as a point 
of reference in fulfilling its duty to 
scrutinise and review the actions and 
decisions of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner.  
 

 
 
Throughout the year, the Police and  
 

 
Crime Panel receives monitoring 
reports on how these objectives are 
being met and scrutinise the PCC’s 
performance in meeting the objectives 
contained in the Plan. 
 
The PCC’s strategic police and crime 
objectives for the Thames Valley have 
regard to 
 

➢ the policing of the area; 
➢ crime and disorder reduction, 

and 
➢ the discharge by Thames Valley 

of its national or international 
functions 

 
The Plan must also cover: 
 

➢ The policing of Thames Valley 
which the Chief Constable is to 
provide 

➢ The financial and other 
resources which the 
Commissioner is to provide to 
the Chief Constable 

➢ The means by which the Chief 
Constable will report to the 
Commissioner on the provision 
of policing 

➢ The means by which the Chief 
Constable's performance in 
providing policing is measured 

➢ The crime and disorder 
reduction grants which the 
Commissioner is to make, and 
the conditions (if any) of those 
grants 

 
The Plan draws upon a wide range of 
information from the police, community 
safety and criminal justice partners to 
ensure it reflects the police and crime 
issues which are affecting the Thames 
Valley. It also covers a much wider 
range of service responsibilities than 
any plan previously developed by the 
police, community safety partnerships  

Page 65



 

8 
 

 
(CSPs) or any other individual 
community safety responsible 
authority. The Plan will bring together 
the priorities of all agencies and 
authorities with a responsibility for 
cutting crime and improving community 
safety. 
 

The Work of the Panel in 2019-
20 
 

 
 
For 2019-20, the Panel had 6 
scheduled meetings where thematic 
scrutiny sessions were to be held on 
topics which had been earmarked in the 
Panel’s work programme for the year. 
 
However, with the Coronavirus 
Pandemic, all meetings were cancelled 
from March onwards. 
 
Throughout the year, The Panel 
considered a number of themed items, 
whereby scrutiny of the PCC took 
place. 
 

Local Policing Model  
 
The Panel was provided with an update 
on the current Local Policing model 
within Thames Valley Police and 
provided the background to the history 
of the model. 
 
The original objective of the new Local  

 
Policing Model which was to undertake 
a review of the structure and activity of 
Local Police Area level policing in view 
of the changing demands on the police 
service, with a reduced resource.  
 
It was reported that a new operating 
model was developed to meet those  
 
changing demands, with the 
cornerstone of the model being 
increased neighbourhood policing 
allied to problem solving. There had 
been difficulties in implementing the 
model. 
 
Reference was made to the 
implementation of the new model which 
had coincided with increased demands 
on the Police, with increased calls 
caused mainly as a result of increased 
crime and recent terrorist attacks. The 
impact was felt on Police Officers who 
at the same time saw their numbers 
reduced by around 150. 
 
The changes in shift patterns had 
affected staff welfare; with officers 
reporting being continually tired and 
unable to recuperate effectively. The 
Deputy Chief Constable reported that 
as a result, several changes were 
recommended to be made which 
included a change to the shift pattern, a 
review of command areas, a review of 
the Smarter Resolution function and the 
workforce mix between police and 
police staff. It was recognised that there 
was a necessity to recruit more officers 
to meet demand and the requirements 
of the new Local Model.   
 
In the Panel’s continuing monitoring 
role, a further progress report was 
given at its November 2019 meeting, 
where it was reported that the Force 
now had the right model with progress 
being made. Next year there would be  

Page 66



 

9 
 

 
a move to LPA officers and staff being 
aligned to one of the three ‘hubs’ in 
Buckinghamshire, Berkshire or 
Oxfordshire.     
 
The Panel was overall pleased with the 
changes which were made to the model 
and were satisfied that part of the 
increase in Police precept was being  
used to increase police visibility in 
neighbourhoods and asked that 
updates be provided to future meetings.

 
Governance of Thames Valley 
Police Collaborations  

 
A scrutiny session took place which 
looked at how the PCC held the Chief 
Constable to account for the various 
collaborations TVP were involved in. 
 
These included: 

➢ Hants/TVP Bi-lateral 

Collaboration 

➢ South East Region Collaboration 

(which included South East 

Regional Organised Crime Unit 

(SEROCU), hosted by Thames 

Valley Police 

➢ Chiltern Transport Consortium 

➢ National Police Air Service 

➢ TVP / TV Fire and Rescue 

Services  

➢ Equip (formerly ERP Project) 

➢ Single Online Home  

➢ National Counter Terrorism 

Police Services 

 

 

 

➢ National Ballistics Intelligence 

Service (NABIS)  

The PCC reported that it was estimated 
that there were savings made were 
around £100,000 year from TVP 
collaborations which were ploughed 
back into front line policing.] 
 
A recommendation which came out of 
the scrutiny session was asking the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to 
consider providing a regular forward 
plan of key decisions and supporting 
information through publishing a non-
confidential summary of Regional 
Governance Board Minutes, to enable  
Members to be kept informed of TVP 
collaborations. This recommendation  
would be revisited in 2020-21.

 
A presentation was given at the Panel 
meeting in September 2019 by the 
Head of Commissioning of the Office of  
the PCC on Victims First. Victims First 
was the overarching brand name for all 
PCC activity aimed at improving the 
post-offence experience of victims of 
crime. 
 
The 4 main strands of activity were: - 

➢ Support: Ensuring appropriate 
services for victims exist across 
the policing area; 

➢ Accessibility: Raising public 
awareness of services and 
improving ease of access; 

➢ Awareness: Campaigns to 
improve knowledge about 
specific types of victimisation  

 
 

Page 67



 

10 
 

➢ and encourage people who need 
support to seek it; 

➢ Rights: Improving the overall 
standard of services for victims 
across the Criminal Justice 
System and beyond.    

 
The information presented to the Panel 
was asked to be forwarded to all 
Thames Valley constituent authorities 
to ensure the service was publicised for 
victims of crime. 
 

HMICFRS - Thames Valley 
Police: Crime Data Integrity re-
inspection 2019 
 
At the September Panel meeting a 
session took place on the Crime Data 
re-inspection results which had found 
that Thames Valley Police had 
improved its crime recording 
arrangements since the 2017; however, 
it was found that there still needed to be 
improvements. 
 
The PCC acknowledged that there was 
clearly more work to be done to improve 
crime recording, particularly as some of 
the issues raised at the last inspection 
had still not been satisfactorily 
remedied.    
 
The PCC provided information on how 
he was holding the Chief Constable to 
account regarding the processes which 
were being put in place to address the 
issues raised in the report relating to 
training of frontline officers in the use of 
NICHE and to Contact Management 
Centre staff for recording crimes 
correctly.  
 
The Chief Constable added that 
improvements would take place on 
recording crime when the public first 
contacted the Police and first calls  
 

would be recorded. A review and 
further training would take place to 
improve performance on this.  
 
The Panel was informed the reporting 
of crime was often a complicated 
process. For example, in the case of 
stalking, which used to be recorded just 
the once, but under the new recording 
system, this had to be recorded by the 
number of instances that the stalking 
took place. This proved challenging. 
 
As an action, the Panel asked that an 
update be provided on progress made 
by TVP in making improvements to 
Crime Data Integrity.  
 

Allocation by TVP of the 
additional £8.5m precept 
funding from 2019-20 
 
The Panel throughout the year 
continued to scrutinise the PCC in 
relation to the 2019-20 Police Precept, 
which saw an additional £8.5m of 
precept funding. The scrutiny of the 
PCC’s budget is an integral role of the 
Panel.  
 
At the November 2019 Panel meeting 
the PCC updated Members on the 
proposals for the extra funding. There 
would be a total of 212 new posts, 
consisting of 69 Police Officers and 143  
Staff (estimated £6.6m for salaries of 
these new posts, likely to increase to 
£8m for the following year). The 
residual funding of around £2m in the 
current year would be invested in 
technology to improve the information 
and communications available for 
officers and to improve the services 
provided. 
 
The Panel was encouraged to hear that 
£2.5m of the extra funding would be  
 

Page 68



 

11 
 

 
allocated to recruit front line Police 
Officers which would increase visibility 
for communities and respond to 
increasing crime.  
 
£1.3m was to be allocated to the 
Contact Management system to help 
with the Police 101 service which had 
encountered problems of delays for 
users.   
 
The Chief Constable reported that the 
Force now had the right model with 
progress being made. Next year there  
would be a move to LPA officers and 
staff being aligned to one of the three 
‘hubs’ in Buckinghamshire, Berkshire or 
Oxfordshire. 
 

 
 
Why was there an increase in 
Crime Rates but a fall in the 
number of prosecutions? 
 
A scrutiny themed item for November 
2019 Panel was for the Panel to assess 
and understand why with an increasing 
crime rate in the Thames Valley and 
nationally has the number of 
convictions/ prosecutions reduced.  
 
The Chief Constable reported that 
generally crime figures were higher due 
to improved crime recording, changes 
to crime-recording rules and increased 
confidence in reporting all which 
continued to have a significant impact 
on the levels of certain crime types.  
 
The Chief Constable reported that 
compared to last year’s figures and for 
the reasons stated above, there had  
 

 
been a 33% increase in the trafficking 
of drugs; a 21% increase in possession 
of weapons and a 20% of possession of 
drugs (there had been a 44% increase 
in stop and search). 
 
With recent increase in national knife 
crime, TVP had used, under the Police 
and Criminal Evidence Act, Section 60 
Orders which were used where there  
had been increases in knife crime. This 
had resulted in increased numbers of 
arrests for possession of weapons and 
of drugs. 
 
Overall there had been an increase of 
crime across the Thames Valley (up 
5%) with references made to increases 
in violence without injury (up 15%), 
thefts from vehicles (up 11%) and thefts  
of motor vehicles (up 5%). Criminal 
damage and violence with injury were 
stable. 
 
There had been reductions in 
shoplifting, Burglary of dwellings (down 
5%), bilking (obtaining or withholding 
money from someone unfairly or by 
deceit; cheat or defraud (down by 6%),  
Arson (down by 7%), Burglary of shed 
(down by 9%) and GBH (down by 20%).  
 
The Thames Valley PEEL (police 
effectiveness, efficiency and legitimacy 
programme) assessment of 2018/19 
had stated that after legislation had 
changed the way in which police bail 
was applied, the TVP had not struck the 
right balance between the use of pre-
charge bail and the released under 
investigation (RUI) option. 
 
Members were reassured that greater 
awareness had been raised amongst 
officers of how to use the bail legislation 
which had resulted in a much greater 
use of bail between October 2018 and  
 

Page 69



 

12 
 

 
September 2019 compared to the 
previous period. 
 
In relation to court resolutions and 
particularly around victims of rape and 
sexual assault, it was acknowledged 
that collectively better work was 
required, particularly around the often-
complex area of disclosure. 
 
The Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner who was also Chairman  
of the Local Criminal Justice Board 
provided information on the criminal 
justice system. 
 
Improvements had been made in Police 
preparations for trials and that for 
Thames Valley between July 2019 to 
September 2019, there had been 
almost 2,500 court cases, with 73% 
defendants offering guilty pleas at 
Crown Court cases. This was proving 
that good work was being done, with 
improvements made in disclosure work. 
 
The Deputy PCC referred to the need 
for more robust statistics on the falling 
levels of prosecutions and convictions 
as arrests had increased in relation to 
crimes such as domestic abuse; 
however, obtaining convictions was not 
always easy due to victims and 
witnesses not seeing the process 
through. Improvements in this area had 
to be made and greater support was 
required for victims of such crimes. 
 
Thames Valley Police had restructured 
their investigative capability with local 
Detective Chief Inspectors put into 
localised areas with CID. There had 
been investment in technology with an 
improvement in the transfer of data to 
the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS).  
 
 
 

 
Concern was expressed by the Panel at 
the Criminal Justice System which had 
resulted in two thirds of magistrates'  
courts in Thames Valley being closed 
over the last decade. The implications 
of this on the Criminal Justice System, 
was felt in relation to some victims of 
crime and witnesses failing to attend 
court hearings, if the distances were too 
great. Reference was made to court  
cases collapsing because of the non-
appearance of witnesses at cases. 
 
CCTV links to Courts would overcome 
some problems, but until that system 
was up and running properly, its 
effectiveness could not be measured. A 
video conference suite was being 
developed would improve the process. 
 

Why did cases collapse? 

This was not just due to problems with 
disclosure. The failure of witnesses to 
turn up, defence solicitors on occasion 
deliberately putting cases off to attempt 
to get cases dropped were amongst 
other reasons why convictions were 
sometimes not achieved. This was very 
frustrating for the Police who had 
worked towards bringing cases to court 
and ultimately getting justice for victims 
of crime. 
 
A recommendation which came out of 
the review was asking the PCC to 
consider requesting the National 
Association of PCCs to issue a joint 
statement on the impact on the Criminal 
Justice System, of the closure of local 
courts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 70



 

13 
 

 
Budget Task and Finish Group 
– Scrutinising the PCC for 
Thames Valley Proposed 
Council Tax Precept for 2020-
21 
 
As in previous years, the Thames 
Valley Police & Crime Panel formed a  
 
Budget Task & Finish Group to assist in 
discharging its statutory duty to 
scrutinise the Police & Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) for Thames 
Valley’s proposed Council Tax precept 
for 2020/21. 
 
The Budget Task and Finish Group 
submitted their report and findings to 
the Panel meeting in February 2020  
and recommended the proposed 
increase to the police element of the 
Council Tax by £10 per annum for 
2020/21 (for a Band D property). This 
was agreed by the Panel. 
 
Overall the settlement announcement 
was good news with an additional grant 
and increased flexibility in council tax 
precept enabling the addressing of 
some service and performance issues 
by increasing resources, both police 
officers and police staff, alongside the 
investment in technology to improve 
productivity. 
 
For this year, the Police Settlement 
announcement was made later than 
usual which placed extra pressure on 
officers and Members in terms of 
analysing the budget proposals. 
However, due to the co-operation of 
both Chief Finance Officers of the PCC 
and TVP the Budget Task and Finish 
Group were given all relevant 
information to ensure full scrutiny to 
take place. 
 

 
Looking to the Future 
 
The Panel will continue to scrutinise 
and monitor the PCC’s Police and 
Crime Plan to ensure his five strategic 
priorities are being met to improve 
policing for residents of the Thames 
Valley. 
 
The March meeting of the Panel was 
cancelled because of the Coronavirus 
Pandemic and those work programme 
items will be considered in meetings for 
2020-21. 
 
These would include: 

 
➢ Exploitation - Preventing 

CSE/Modern Slavery/Forced 
Marriage/Hidden Harm/ FGM 

➢ Rural Crime 
➢ Community Safety 

Partnerships Updates 
➢ Update on Recruitment and 

Retention within Thames 

Valley Police 

➢ Update on Local Policing 
Model 

➢ Property/Assets – Looking at 
shared facilities between TVP 
and other “blue light” 
emergency services 

➢ Work and Structure of the 
Thames Valley Road Safety 
Working Group/Safer Road 
Strategy  

➢ Progress on Violence 
Reduction Unit 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Thames Valley Police 'appalled' by death of George Floyd but asks 
public to keep social distancing 

https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/thames-valley-police-
appalled-death-18359551 

Bosses at Thames Valley Police have joined forces across the UK to stand with those 
appalled by the death of George Floyd in the US. A joint statement has asked that people 
maintain social  distancing and keep Coronavirus in mind. 

https://www.theguardian.com/society/2020/jun/09/katy-bourne-police-crime-
commissioner-solidarity-protesting-racism-black-lives-matter 

Bid to defuse tensions as Black Lives Matter protests escalate 

https://www.theguardian.com/world/2020/jun/08/london-mayor-seeks-defuse-
tensions-ahead-more-blm-protests?CMP=share_btn_link 

What Powers did the Police have with Covid 19 (June 2020) 

 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/explainers-52106843 

More than 30 arrested in Thames Valley Police crackdown on online 
child sexual abuse 

https://www.itv.com/news/meridian/2020-06-08/more-than-30-arrested-in-thames-
valley-police-crackdown-on-online-child-sexual-abuse/ 

Thames Valley Police record number of sex crimes against Children 

https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/concerning-record-
number-sex-crimes-17635506 

Report to the Thames Valley Police & Crime Panel  
 
 
Title: 

 
 
Topical Issues  
 

 

Date: 19 June 2020 
 
 

Author: Khalid Ahmed, Scrutiny 
Officer, Thames Valley Police 
& Crime Panel 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/thames-valley-police-appalled-death-18359551
https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/thames-valley-police-appalled-death-18359551
https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/uk-world-news/thousands-join-black-lives-matter-18359012
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2020/jun/09/katy-bourne-police-crime-commissioner-solidarity-protesting-racism-black-lives-matter
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2020/jun/09/katy-bourne-police-crime-commissioner-solidarity-protesting-racism-black-lives-matter
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2020/jun/08/london-mayor-seeks-defuse-tensions-ahead-more-blm-protests?CMP=share_btn_link
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2020/jun/08/london-mayor-seeks-defuse-tensions-ahead-more-blm-protests?CMP=share_btn_link
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/explainers-52106843
https://www.itv.com/news/meridian/2020-06-08/more-than-30-arrested-in-thames-valley-police-crackdown-on-online-child-sexual-abuse/
https://www.itv.com/news/meridian/2020-06-08/more-than-30-arrested-in-thames-valley-police-crackdown-on-online-child-sexual-abuse/
https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/concerning-record-number-sex-crimes-17635506
https://www.getreading.co.uk/news/reading-berkshire-news/concerning-record-number-sex-crimes-17635506


A record number of child sex abuse crimes have been reported to Thames Valley Police. 

There were 2,052 reports made to the force about sexual crimes against children in the 12 
months to June 2019 – the highest number since records began in 2002. The figure has 
more than doubled in the last six years alone, rising by nearly 120 per cent from 952 cases 
in the year to June 2013. There were 1,955 such crimes recorded in the year to June 
2018. 

The crimes include rape, sexual assault, sexual exploitation and grooming of children 
under the age of 16. Four in every five victims were girls. The increase may be due to an 
actual rise in abuse, but it may also be linked to more victims feeling able to come forward, 
and better recording practices by police. 

National Targets for Reducing Crime to be Reintroduced 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-51645526 

Domestic abuse 

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/enhanced-domestic-abuse-bill-introduced-to-
parliament 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-51709638 

Domestic violence offenders in England and Wales could face compulsory lie-detector 
tests when released from prison under proposed new laws.Those deemed at high risk of 
re-offending will be given regular polygraph tests to find out if they have breached release 
conditions. 

The long-awaited Domestic Violence Bill will also specify that controlling a victim's finances 
can count as abuse.  

Alleged abusers will also be banned from cross-examining victims in court. 

Lie-detector tests - which work by measuring changes in heart rate, blood pressure, 
respiratory rate and sweat - are not 100% accurate.  

But the Home Office said it was already using the tests to monitor high-risk sex offenders 
and had found them to be 89% accurate. 

If the Domestic Abuse Bill passes, a three-year pilot will be carried out on domestic 
abusers which are deemed at high-risk of causing serious harm. If successful, the scheme 
will be rolled out nationwide. 

Around 300 offenders will take a lie detector test three months after their release and 
every six months after that, according to the Home Office. Those who fail the test will not 
be returned to prison - but they may be jailed if they refuse to take the test or attempt to 
"trick" it, the Home Office added.They can also be returned to prison if the tests show 
"their risk has escalated to level whereby they can no longer be safely managed in the 
community". 

Page 74

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-51645526
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/enhanced-domestic-abuse-bill-introduced-to-parliament
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/enhanced-domestic-abuse-bill-introduced-to-parliament
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-51709638
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-abuse-bill-2019-factsheets/mandatory-polygraph-tests-fact-sheet


Information gathered from failed lie-detector tests is routinely shared with the police who 
use it to carry out further investigations. 

Campaigners say action to help the nearly two million victims of domestic abuse in the UK 
each year, two thirds of whom are women, is long overdue. 

There will also be a ban on perpetrators cross-examining their victims during family court 
proceedings and a legal duty on councils to find safe accommodation for domestic abuse 
victims and their children. 

Charity Women's Aid said this could be a "life-saving" move, but only if it was 
accompanied by guaranteed funding for specialist women's services - including for 
"marginalised" groups in society, which it estimates will cost about £173m a year.  

While welcoming many of the initiatives, children's charities warned that some families with 
children risked "falling through the cracks in support". 

The legislation will also enshrine a new definition of domestic abuse in law that recognises 
economic abuse - when a perpetrator controls a victim's finances - as a specific type of the 
crime. 

Court protection orders banning perpetrators from contacting a victim or forcing them to 
take part in alcohol or drug treatment programmes may also be introduced. 

Support for migrant domestic abuse victims will also be reviewed, while ministers will 
consider what more can be done to stop the so-called "rough sex" defence being used by 
perpetrators in court.  

Homicide rise linked to fall in police numbers, Home Office says 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-51754289 

The fall in police numbers is "likely" to be a "contributory factor" in the rise in murder and 
manslaughter cases since 2014, an official study suggests.  

Police numbers in England and Wales fell by 21,000 from 2010-18 - and community 
support officers by 6,000. And the rate of murders and manslaughters soared by 39% in 
the three years to March 2018. 

Evidence suggests "more police officers means fewer homicides... if all else is equal", the 
Home Office report says. But the study also highlights increases in drugs- and terror-
related cases as key reasons for the rise. 

Clear-up rates for most crimes, notably robbery, have fallen sharply in England and Wales 
since 2014 and the 80-page report suggests the rise in homicides could also be due to 
violent incidents that escalate or offenders progressing from less serious crimes. 

◾Number of suspects charged by police hits new low 

◾Gang murder investigations blocked by 'wall of silence'  

Page 75

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-51754289


The report says: "There has been much speculation about the role of declining police 
resources in the recent rise in homicide. "Given the lack of robust UK-based studies, this 
review cannot add much to that debate. "However, if the elasticities from the robust US 
studies are transferrable to the UK context, then police numbers are likely to be a 
contributory factor, rather than the driving factor." 

The government is promising to hire an extra 20,000 police officers by 2023, at a cost of 
£1.1bn. There are currently 123,171 police officers in England and Wales, down from 
143,000 in 2010.  

Page 76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Police and Crime Commissioner's Response to COVID-19
	6 Police and Crime Commissioner's Annual Report - 2019-20
	PCC_Annual_Report_2019-20_FINAL_10 June 2020

	7 Police and Crime Panel's Annual Report 2019-20
	9 Chairman and PCC Updates and Topical Issues

